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Corporate Profile
Newfoundland Power Inc. (“Newfoundland Power”) operates an integrated
generation, transmission and distribution system throughout the island
portion of Newfoundland and Labrador.
For over 120 years, we have provided customers with safe, reliable electricity
in the most cost-efficient manner possible. Our Company serves over 239,000
customers, approximately 85% of all electricity consumers in the province.
Our employees continue to provide our customers with the service they
expect and deserve in an environmentally and socially responsible manner.
Our vision is to be a leader among North American electric utilities in terms of
safety, customer service, reliability and efficiency.
All the common shares of Newfoundland Power are owned by Fortis Inc.
(TSX:FTS), the largest investor-owned distribution utility in Canada, which
serves approximately 2,100,000 gas and electricity customers, and has
assets exceeding $12 billion.

3 Financial and Operating Highlights
22 Management Discussion and Analysis
47 Financial Statements and Notes
77 Connected to our Communities

5 Report to Shareholders
45 Management Report
75 Ten Year Summary
78 Board of Directors

9 Report on Operations
46 Auditors’ Report
76 Executive Team
79 Investor Information

Highlights
Financial

2009

Revenue ($000s)

2008

527,179

516,889
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1,181,433

Long-term Debt ($000s)

482,388
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 Highlights

Report to

Shareholders
Throughout 2009, Newfoundland Power demonstrated the power of its commitment to customers. This resulted
in a 90% overall customer satisfaction rating. Our strong connection with our customers and communities shows
the improvements we have made across many aspects of our business are delivering results.
In 2009, we achieved our best year on record for the lowest number of safety incidents; continued to make strategic
investments in our electricity system; maintained our strong level of reliability; and, increased our focus on energy
efficiency. We did all of this while continuing to strengthen relationships with community partners.
Our earnings of $32.6 million in 2009 increased by $0.3 million over 2008. Electricity sales increased 1.7% to 5,299
gigawatt hours (“GWh”) in 2009, and our number of customers grew 1.7% to over 239,000.
Newfoundland Power filed an application with the Newfoundland and Labrador Board of Commissioners of Public
Utilities (“PUB”) in 2009, to set electricity rates for 2010. Following a public hearing, the PUB approved an overall
average increase of 3.5% in electricity rates, effective January 1, 2010. When combined with the 6.6% average
decrease on July 1, 2009, electricity rates in January 2010 are, on average, lower than those in January 2009, with
residential rates remaining the lowest in Atlantic Canada.
While our goal will always be zero accidents, in 2009 we recorded our least number of safety incidents in over
40 years. This was the result of a refocused employee commitment to putting safety first, supported by several
corporate initiatives.
Early in the year we launched our Safety…Live it! theme to motivate employees to share in the responsibility of
safety both on and off-the-job. Our new safety television advertisement helped to maximize awareness about
electrical hazards among the general public. We responded to contractor contacts with electrical equipment with
a new safety campaign called, Know where the line is! And, we partnered with safety conscious groups, such as the
Newfoundland and Labrador Safety Construction Association, to prevent vandalism to our electricity system.
We take the responsibility of providing safe, reliable electricity to our customers at the lowest possible cost
very seriously. In 2009, we allocated over 30% of our capital expenditures to connecting a record number of
new customers, and over 60% to upgrading and modernizing components of the provincial electricity system.
We spent approximately $4.5 million to upgrade transmission lines, including two on the Bonavista Peninsula,
$5.2 million to replace the penstock at our Rocky Pond Hydroelectric Plant; and, $4.5 million to refurbish and
modernize substations across the island. Such investments aided in reducing the number of outages experienced
by our customers by 14% over 2008. In 2009, we delivered electricity to our customers 99.97% of the time.
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We combined forces with Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro (“Hydro”) to launch 4 takeCHARGE Energy Savers
Rebate Programs. Our presence at community events combined with the strategic marketing of our takeCHARGE
partnership, resulted in approximately 50,000 visits to takechargenl.ca and almost 2,000 participants in our rebate
programs in 2009.
Energy efficiency also took on an increased focus at our 12th annual EnviroFest celebrations, held across the island.
Attended by more than 5,500 people and over 300 community groups, our EnviroFest events highlight the importance
of our environment for future generations. We have planted almost 2,000 trees as part of our EnviroFestivities,
beautifying green spaces throughout the province.
When we work together, the impact on our communities and our province can be invaluable. In 2009, we raised
over $165,000 for our corporate charity, The Power of Life Project. This was made possible by generous donations
from our customers and employees, our annual corporate donation, and funds raised at employee-driven events.

The Project helped to enhance cancer care in several areas of the province. We donated 5 chemotherapy chairs to
the Cancer Centre Western Region, a blanket warmer to the Burin Cancer Centre, and presented the second
$100,000 installment of our $350,000 commitment to the Dr. H. Bliss Murphy Cancer Centre Capital Campaign. To
date, The Project has provided in excess of $1.5 million in monetary and in-kind donations to cancer care, with every
dollar going to research, treatment and awareness initiatives in this province!
Since joining Canadian Blood Services’ Partners for Life program in 2004, our employees and their families have made
approximately 1,700 blood donations, helping to save up to 5,100 lives. In 2009, we were proud to be the highest
donor of all corporate partners in Atlantic Canada.
We wish to thank our employees for offering their talents, hard work and commitment throughout the year. Our
ability to achieve a record performance for safety, maintain a strong electricity system, increase our focus on energy
efficiency, and provide our customers with customer service excellence is a credit to their valued contributions.
We express our sincerest appreciation for the Board of Directors continued support and direction. We also thank
Mr. Chris Griffiths, who retired from our Board after 6 years of service, for his perspective and guidance.
It is the power of our people that continues to deliver results. Their unrelenting dedication to putting safety first,
developing relationships with our customers, preserving our environment and serving our communities has shaped
the way we do business. We are committed to continuing this proud tradition for many years to come!
Sincerely,

David Norris							

Earl Ludlow

Chair, Board of Directors					

President and Chief Executive Officer
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The Power of

Safety
We are dedicated to the safety of our employees, contractors and the public. It is the foundation of our Company and
our very top priority! The power of safety education and awareness remained an ongoing focus for the Company
in 2009, resulting in our lowest number of safety incidents on record. This can be attributed to our employees’
dedication to working safely, reinforced by streamlined work processes and several new safety initiatives.
Early in 2009, we launched an electronic safety application called PREVENT. This single access point for reporting
and tracking incidents increased our ability to identify problem areas and take preventative action. We also
strengthened employee participation in the health and safety process. This involved restructuring our Occupational
Health and Safety Committees island-wide, and updating work methods used in the construction, operations, and
maintenance of distribution and transmission lines.
An increased concentration on Meter Reader safety throughout the year resulted in significant improvements. For
the first time in 5 years, there were no lost-time or medical-aid injuries involving the Meter Reading group.
We maximized the power of our safety messaging with targeted communications to key audiences in 2009. The
launch of our internal campaign, Safety…Live it!, called upon our employees to share in the responsibility of safety
at work and at home. Our Know where the line is! campaign targeted contractors with important messaging about
working around electrical equipment. We reminded the public about electrical hazards with a new safety television
advertisement. And, we partnered with Crime Stoppers to prevent acts of vandalism to our electricity system.
We continued our 25-year history of firefighter electrical safety seminars, educating over 240 firefighters. And, with
the help of our retirees and employee volunteers, we were able to educate approximately 3,000 school children
about electrical safety.
The successful completion of an external audit of our Health and Safety Management System in 2009, confirmed
our continued compliance with the Occupational Health and Safety Assessment Series 18001 Health and Safety
Management System international standards.

Our daily operations focus on a core set of values which have been largely shaped by our
responsibility to our customers and our community. The most powerful of these values is, and
always will be, SAFETY.
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The Power of

Reliability
Our ability to provide electricity to our customers in a safe and reliable manner is directly related to the quality and
condition of our electricity system. Over the years, our electricity system has become increasingly stronger due to
the strategic capital investments we have made throughout our service territory.
Over the past 5 years, we have invested in excess of $300 million in capital expenditures, including approximately
$70 million in 2009. More than 60% of our 2009 capital spending involved upgrading and modernizing our electricity
system. We allocated $4.5 million to upgrading transmission lines, including 2 on the Bonavista Peninsula,
$5.2 million to replacing the penstock at our Rocky Pond Hydroelectric Plant, and $4.5 million to refurbishing and
modernizing substations across the island.
Over 30% of our capital budget went to providing service to a record number of new customers in 2009. Throughout
the year, we connected over 5,000 services, and our total number of customers grew to over 239,000.
2009 was our best year on record for the number and length of outages. We reduced the number of outages
experienced by our customers by 14% compared to 2008, and delivered electricity to our customers 99.97% of the
time. We will continue to make strategic investments in the future in order to maintain this level of integrity.
In 2010, we plan to invest approximately $65 million in capital projects, which will allow us to continue providing
safe, reliable service to our customers at the lowest cost possible.

Investments that are focused on maintaining a strong electricity system will not only enable us to
sustain our current level of RELIABILITY, but also help us to maintain the lowest electricity rates
in Atlantic Canada!
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The Power of

Energy Efficiency

Promoting energy efficiency in Newfoundland and Labrador benefits our customers, our environment, and the
Company! In 2009, we focused on assisting our customers to reduce the amount of energy they use in their homes
and businesses, and save money.
We partnered with Hydro under our joint energy efficiency partnership, takeCHARGE – Saving Energy Starts Here!,
to launch our takeCHARGE Energy Savers Rebate Programs. These programs provide our commercial customers
with rebates on energy efficient lighting, and our residential customers with rebates on insulation, programmable
and electronic thermostats, and ENERGY STAR® windows. We promoted the new takeCHARGE programs
through traditional and social media, tradeshows, seminars at municipalities and customer conferences, and
point-of-purchase booths at building supply stores throughout the province.
From November 14th – 20th, we celebrated the first ever takeCHARGE Energy Efficiency Week in Newfoundland and
Labrador. Throughout the week, we talked one-on-one with customers in their homes and provided energy saving
advice on a television series called Winter Warm-Up. This was supported by a customer contest and media campaign
to increase awareness about energy efficiency.
These initiatives are expected to achieve 15 GWh of energy savings annually by 2013. This is the same as removing
almost 1,400 electrically-heated homes from the province’s electricity system.
By the end of 2009, almost 2,000 customers had taken advantage of our rebate programs, and close to 50,000
customers visited our energy efficiency website, takechargenl.ca.
Internal energy efficiency initiatives in 2009 involved completing energy audits at a number of our facilities, and
installing energy efficient lighting in several of our buildings.

By encouraging our customers to be ENERGY EFFICIENT through our takeCHARGE partnership,
we are giving them the power to save energy, save money and positively impact the future of our
environment.
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The Power of

Customer Service
We all work together to provide customer service excellence. It is rewarding to know that it is recognized by
those who matter most, our customers. We attribute our 90% customer satisfaction rating to our employees’
determination to provide the highest level of service every day.

Offering our customers choice can be very powerful. In 2009, we increased customer convenience by offering
an alternative to how our customers choose to do business with us. Since introducing e-correspondence in the
second quarter, over 25,000 customers have chosen email as their primary means of communication. We also
installed new software in our Customer Contact Centre to help us manage and respond to this increase in electronic
inquiries. The number of customers who opted to receive their electricity bills electronically also increased in 2009,
growing by 20% over the previous year.
We continued to install automated meters in new developments throughout the island and where meter accessibility
has been an issue. The ability to read these meters remotely has allowed us to address numerous safety issues and
decreased our need to estimate bills. We currently have almost 19,000 of these meters in use across our service
territory.
Enhancing our relationships with our customers has been a continued focus over the last several years. In 2009,
we increased our participation at tradeshows around the province, and set up mall displays to meet and talk with
our customers on a one-on-one basis.

Our strong customer satisfaction rating demonstrates the power of our employees’ commitment
to delivering the SERVICE EXCELLENCE our customers expect and deserve from us!
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The Power of

Employees

No matter what role our employees play, they each bring special skills and talents to our Company. We enhanced
the power of our employees in 2009 through development opportunities, and recruitment and training initiatives.
The development of a new work methods team combined years of knowledge and experience from across the
Company in support of transmission and distribution functions. Instrumental in the development and implementation
of work procedures, operational practices, and tool and equipment specifications, our employees use the power of
teamwork to identify best practices to ensure everyone is working safely and effectively.
We underwent a significant reorganization in the second quarter, bringing a larger number of employees from
across the Company together to create and maintain a safe work environment. This new structure works at the
grassroots level to increase employee involvement in the safety process.
Working towards maximizing knowledge transfer and smooth employee succession, we continued our Powerline
Technician Apprentice Program in 2009. The job skill and training requirements associated with this program
enable us to provide the same level of safe, reliable service our customers have come to expect, despite the
pressures of an aging workforce.
We also focused on a number of recruitment initiatives in 2009. We developed succession plans for key positions
within our Engineering and Operations Departments. Our participation in career fairs at Memorial University of
Newfoundland and College of the North Atlantic campuses increased. And, we hired 19 work term students as part
of our continued support of Cooperative Programs.
In 2009, the Company and its Union, IBEW Local 1620, ratified 2 Collective Agreements, which will remain in effect
for 3 years, until September 2011.

We believe in a strategic and consistent approach to the development of our organization’s most
valued assets, our EMPLOYEES, who individually and collectively contribute to our corporate
success.
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The Power of

Environment

We believe in the power of our environment. That’s why we take our pledge to operate in an environmentally
responsible manner very seriously.
In 2009, we completed several projects to reduce the environmental risks associated with operating our electricity
system. Such projects involved: replacing the wooden penstock at our Rocky Pond Hydroelectric Plant with steel;
replacing aged transformers to reduce the risk of oil leakage; and, removing and disposing of PCB oil-filled electrical
equipment. To date, approximately 78% of our feeders and 87% of our substations have been completed under the
PCB Phase-out Program.
Throughout the year, we also invested capital to make our electricity system more energy efficient. By raising
the spillway at our Rose Blanche Hydroelectric Plant, we successfully increased the plant’s energy output. The
incremental energy will help to defer new hydroelectric developments and serve to displace the use of additional
oil from Hydro’s Holyrood Generating Plant. 2009 also marked the first of a 3-year project involving replacing
streetlights across the island with energy efficient High Pressure Sodium lights. The new lights provide the same
quality of lighting while consuming 35% less energy.
An external audit of our Environmental Management System in 2009 verified our continued compliance with the
ISO 14001 international standard. It further confirmed that our facilities are well-maintained and our employees
continue to demonstrate a commitment to working in an environmentally responsible manner.
2009 also marked the 12th anniversary of our annual employee-driven EnviroFest celebrations. During Environment
Week, we hosted 8 events across the island, attended by thousands of people and over 300 community groups. To
date, our employees and community volunteers have planted approximately 2,000 trees as part of our EnviroFestivities,
helping to improve our environment and beautify green spaces throughout the province.
We pride ourselves on taking a leadership role in creating public awareness about the importance of preserving our
environment for future generations. In 2009, we paid particular attention to educating participants and communities
about the benefits of being energy efficient.

Our commitment to the ENVIRONMENT is not only a part of normal business operations, but also
a partnership with our customers and communities to build a greener tomorrow.
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The Power of

Community
Our history of community involvement stems from the devotion our employees have to the places in which they

live and work. With area offices and facilities located throughout the island, the power of our contributions can be
seen from coast to coast.
In 2009, we contributed over $165,000 to our corporate charity, The Power of Life Project, which helped to enhance
cancer care through several area-specific donations. We donated 5 chemotherapy chairs to the Cancer Centre
Western Region, a blanket warmer to the Burin Cancer Centre, and the second $100,000 installment of our $350,000
commitment to the Dr. H. Bliss Murphy Cancer Centre Capital Campaign.
We have donated in excess of $1.5 million to cancer care to date. This is the result of continuous contributions from
our customers and employees, our annual corporate donation, and employee-driven fundraisers, such as annual
snowmobile runs, and golf and softball tournaments. Working as a team we have, and will continue to, make a
difference in the fight against cancer in Newfoundland and Labrador. And, every dollar goes to research, treatment
and awareness initiatives in this province.
In support of prostate cancer awareness, we stepped up our support of Motorcycle Ride for Dad in 2009. In addition
to assisting with education and awareness, we hosted over 600 bikes at our Kenmount Road location on Ride Day.
Together we raised about $130,000 toward the fight against prostate cancer in Newfoundland and Labrador.
We formed a new community partnership in 2009 with our sponsorship of East Meets West, a unique initiative
aimed at increasing tourism on the east and west coasts of the island. We also strengthened our relationship with
Municipalities Newfoundland and Labrador through presentations, seminars and participation in several municipal
events.
Our employees and their families demonstrated their commitment to giving the gift of life throughout the year. In
2009, we were the highest of any corporate partner in Atlantic Canada, second only to the Canadian Forces Base in
Gagetown, New Brunswick. Since joining Canadian Blood Services’ Partners for Life program in 2004, Newfoundland
Power employees and their families have made approximately 1,700 blood donations, helping to save up to 5,100
lives.

As one of the oldest existing businesses in the province, we have one of the longest histories of
COMMUNITY involvement, and it is our employees who have made all the difference.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
This Management Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) dated February 4, 2010, should be read in conjunction with Newfoundland
Power Inc.’s (the “Company” or “Newfoundland Power”) annual financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended
December 31, 2009. The MD&A has been prepared in accordance with National Instrument 51-102 Continuous Disclosure Obligations.
Financial information herein reflects Canadian dollars and Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“Canadian GAAP”),
including certain accounting practices unique to rate regulated entities. These accounting practices, which are disclosed in Notes 2
and 4 to the Company’s 2009 annual audited financial statements, result in the recognition of revenues, expenses, regulatory assets and
regulatory liabilities which would not occur in the absence of rate regulation and which affect the Company’s reported earnings, cash
flows and financial position.
Certain information herein is forward-looking and reflects management’s current expectations regarding the Company’s future financial
and related performance. The words “anticipates”, “believes”, “budgets”, “could”, “estimates”, “expects”, “forecasts”, “intends”, “may”,
“might”, “plans”, “projects”, “schedule”, “should”, “will”, “would” and similar expressions are often intended to identify forward-looking
information, although not all forward-looking information contains these identifying words. The forward-looking information reflects
management’s current beliefs and is based on information currently available to the Company’s management. Certain material factors,
estimates and assumptions, which are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties surrounding future expectations generally, have
been applied in drawing the conclusions contained in the forward-looking statements. These are related to, but are not limited to:
regulation; energy supply; competition; general economic conditions; health, safety and the environment; interest rates; insurance;
weather; labour relations; licences and permits; capital resources and liquidity. Readers are cautioned to not place undue reliance on
forward-looking statements because actual results could differ materially from the results discussed or implied in those statements. The
Company undertakes no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking information as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise.
Additional information, including the Company’s quarterly and annual financial statements, annual information form and management
information circular, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

OVERVIEW
The Company
Newfoundland Power is a regulated electricity utility that owns and operates an integrated generation, transmission
and distribution system throughout the island portion of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador. All the
Company’s common shares are owned by Fortis Inc. (“Fortis”), which is principally a diversified, international
holding company for electricity and gas distribution utilities.
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Newfoundland Power’s primary business is electricity distribution. It generates approximately 8% of its electricity
needs and purchases the remainder from Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro (“Hydro”). Newfoundland Power
serves over 239,000 customers, approximately 85% of all electricity consumers in the Province.
Newfoundland Power’s vision is to be a leader among North American electricity utilities in terms of safety,
reliability, customer service and efficiency. The key goals of the Company are to operate sound electricity distribution
systems, deliver safe reliable electricity to customers at the lowest reasonable cost and conduct business in an
environmentally and socially responsible manner.

Regulation
Newfoundland Power is regulated by the Newfoundland and Labrador Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities
(the “PUB”). The Company operates under cost of service regulation whereby it is entitled the opportunity to
recover, through customer rates, all reasonable and prudent costs incurred in providing electricity service to its
customers, including a just and reasonable return on its rate base. The rate base is the value of the net assets
required to provide electricity service.
Between general rate hearings, customer rates are established annually through an automatic adjustment formula
(the “Formula”). The Formula sets an appropriate rate of return on common equity (“ROE”) which is used to
determine the rate of return on rate base. In accordance with operation of the Formula, the Company’s rate of
return on rate base for ratemaking purposes for 2009 remained unchanged from 2008 at 8.37%, with a range of
8.19% to 8.55%. This reflects a regulated ROE of 8.95%, unchanged from 2008.

Financial Highlights

Electricity Sales (gigawatt hours (“GWh”))
Earnings Applicable to Common Shares
$ Millions
$ Per Share
ROE (%)1
Cash Flow from Operating Activities ($millions)
Total Assets ($millions)

2009

2008

5,299.0

5,208.2

Change
90.8

32.6
3.16
8.64
59.4
1,188.0

32.3
3.13
8.86
85.0
1,001.9

0.3
0.03
(0.22)
(25.6)
186.1

1 Earnings applicable to common shares, divided by the average of common shareholder’s equity at the beginning and end of the year. This ratio is a non-GAAP financial
measure, does not have any standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and is unlikely to be comparable to similar ratios published by other companies. It is presented
because it is commonly referred to by the users of the Company’s financial statements in evaluating the results of operations and by the Company’s regulator in the rate
setting process.

Electricity sales for the year ended December 31, 2009 increased by 90.8 GWh or 1.7% compared to 2008. The
increase in electricity sales is comprised of an increase of (i) 1.5% due to customer growth and (ii) 0.2% due to
higher average consumption.

23 Management Discussion and Analysis

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2009 increased $0.3 million from $32.3 million in 2008 to $32.6 million
in 2009. Additional earnings from higher electricity sales and other revenue, a lower effective tax rate and changes
in purchase power expense due to higher water inflows in 2008 associated with the Company’s hydroelectric
generating facilities were partially offset by increased operating, amortization, finance and demand costs.
The decrease in cash flow from operating activities primarily reflects higher income tax installments and timing
of payments relating to 2008 income taxes. Timing differences in other non-cash working capital items also
contributed to lower cash flow from operating activities.
The increase in total assets was predominantly due to the adoption of Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA”) Handbook Section 3465, Income Taxes (see Note 2 of the Company’s 2009 annual audited financial
statements). The remaining increase resulted from continued investment in the electricity system, and is consistent
with the Company’s strategy to provide safe, reliable electricity service at the lowest reasonable cost.
Pursuant to the Company’s 2010 General Rate Application (“2010 GRA”), in December 2009, the PUB ordered that
customer electricity rates be increased by an overall average of approximately 3.5% effective January 1, 2010. The
Company’s rate of return on rate base for ratemaking purposes was set at 8.23%, with a range of 8.05% to 8.41%,
for 2010. This reflects a regulated ROE of 9.00% for 2010. The Formula remains unchanged however it is subject to
review in 2010. The 2010 GRA also provided for the amortization of certain regulatory assets and liabilities and the
creation of a pension expense variance deferral account (“PEVDA”) to deal with differences between defined benefit
pension expense calculated in accordance with GAAP and pension expense approved by the PUB for rate setting
purposes. The 2010 general rate order is expected to yield earnings and cash flows that will enable the Company
to maintain its investment grade credit ratings.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenue:
($millions)

2009

2008

Change

Revenue from Rates
Amortization of Regulatory Liabilities
Other Revenue1
Total

508.8
6.0
12.4
527.2

496.4
8.6
11.9
516.9

12.4
(2.6)
0.5
10.3

1 Other revenue is composed largely of pole attachment charges to various telecommunication companies.

Revenue increased by approximately $10.3 million, from $516.9 million in 2008 to $527.2 million in 2009. The
increase primarily resulted from electricity sales growth.
The amortization of regulatory liabilities related to unbilled revenue and municipal tax is in accordance with
PUB orders. These regulatory liabilities are described in Note 4 to the Company’s 2009 annual audited financial
statements.
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Other revenue increased by approximately $0.5 million, from $11.9 million in 2008 to $12.4 million in 2009. The
increase was primarily related to land sales and higher joint use revenue, partially offset by lower interest on
customer accounts.

Purchased Power:

Purchased power expense increased by approximately $9.0 million, from $336.7 million

in 2008 to $345.7 million in 2009. The increase was primarily due to electricity sales growth and higher demand
charges from Hydro.

Operating Expense:

Operating expense increased by approximately $2.2 million from $47.1 million in 2008

to $49.3 million in 2009. Wage and inflationary increases, increased costs associated with the 2010 GRA and higher
PUB assessment costs due to timing of recognition of these costs in 2008, were partially offset by reductions in
insurance and travel costs.

Pension and Early Retirement Program Costs:

Pension and early retirement program costs decreased

by approximately $0.3 million from $3.0 million in 2008 to $2.7 million in 2009. The decrease was primarily due to
a higher discount rate at December 31, 2008, which is used to determine the Company’s accrued benefit pension
obligation associated with its Defined Benefit Pension Plan. This was partially offset by 2008 experience losses
associated with the pension plan assets and a lower assumed long-term rate of return on pension assets for 2009.
The impact of the decline in pension plan assets in 2008, as it relates to 2009 pension expense, was also mitigated
as the pension assets are valued using the market related value as outlined in Note 2 to the 2009 annual audited
financial statements.

Amortization:

Amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets increased by approximately

$1.2 million, from $40.6 million in 2008 to $41.8 million in 2009. Higher amortization was associated with capital
and intangible asset expenditures of $74.1 million in 2009.

Amortization True-Up Deferral:

Amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is

subject to periodic review by external experts via an amortization study. Based on a 2002 amortization study, the
PUB ordered the deferred recovery of approximately $11.6 million, $5.8 million in each of 2006 and 2007, related
to a variance in accumulated amortization. These deferrals were recorded as an increase in regulatory assets and
a decrease in expenses in each year, to be amortized evenly over 2008 through 2010. The Company has recorded
$3.9 million of amortization in both 2009 and 2008. This regulatory asset is described further in Note 4 to the
Company’s 2009 annual audited financial statements.

Finance Charges:

Finance charges increased by approximately $1.1 million from $33.5 million in 2008 to

$34.6 million in 2009. This increase primarily related to higher interest costs associated with the $65 million first
mortgage bond issue in May 2009, partially offset by lower short term interest rates which are reflective of current
market conditions.

Income Taxes:

Income tax expense decreased by approximately $3.0 million, from $19.1 million in 2008

to $16.1 million in 2009. This decrease primarily reflects a lower effective income tax rate resulting from the
amortization of regulatory deferrals and a reduction in the statutory tax rate.
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FINANCIAL POSITION
Explanations of the primary causes of significant changes in the Company’s balance sheets between
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2009 follow.

Increase
($millions)
Cash

(Decrease)

Explanation

4.7

Increase due to timing of payments related to the
Company’s credit facilities.

Accrued Pension
Total Regulatory Assets

4.7
143.4

Pension funding in excess of pension expense.
Increase primarily due to the adoption of CICA
Handbook Section 3465, Income Taxes (see Note 3
of the Company’s 2009 annual audited financial
statements).

Income Tax Payable / Receivable (Net)

(11.8)

Decrease related to timing of income tax installments.
Higher installments were required in 2009 based
upon 2008 income taxes.

Property, Plant and Equipment

28.4

Investment in electricity system, in accordance with
2009 capital expenditure program, offset partially by
amortization and customer contributions in aid of
construction.

Total Regulatory Liabilities

17.3

Increase primarily due to the adoption of CICA
Handbook Section 3465, Income Taxes (see Note 3
of the Company’s 2009 annual audited financial
statements).

Other Post-Employment Benefits
Total Future Income Taxes

5.6
122.3

Increase in employee future benefit liability.
Increase primarily due to the adoption of CICA
Handbook Section 3465, Income Taxes (see Note 3
of the Company’s 2009 annual audited financial
statements).

Long-term Debt, including Current

41.1

Portion
Retained Earnings

Represents additional debt required to finance growth
in rate base and ongoing operating activities.

7.4

Earnings, in excess of dividends, retained to finance
rate base growth.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
The primary sources of liquidity and capital resources are net funds generated from operations, debt capital markets
and bank credit facilities. These sources are used primarily to satisfy capital and intangible asset expenditures,
service and repay debt, and pay dividends. A summary of cash flows and cash position for 2009 and 2008
follows.

($millions)

2009

2008

Cash, Beginning of Year
Operating Activities
Investing Activities
Capital and Intangible Asset Expenditures
Other

0.6
59.4

1.1
85.0

(74.1)
4.5
(69.6)

(67.3)
3.2
(64.1)

(6.8)
1.3
(5.5)

65.0
(18.5)
(25.2)
(5.2)
(1.2)
14.9
5.3

(1.0)
(15.3)
(4.6)
(0.5)
(21.4)
0.6

65.0
(17.5)
(9.9)
(0.6)
(0.7)
36.3
4.7

Financing Activities
Bond Issue
Net Credit Facility Repayments
Dividends on Common Shares
Bond Sinking Fund Payments
Other
Cash, End of Year

Change
(0.5)
(25.6)

Operating Activities
Cash flow from operating activities totalled $59.4 million in 2009 compared to $85 million in 2008. The
$25.6 million decrease in cash flow from operating activities reflects (i) higher income tax installments for 2009, (ii)
timing of payments relating to 2008 income taxes, (iii) timing differences related to collection of electricity and other
receivables and (iv) collections under the Company’s equal payment plan for its electricity customers.

Investing Activities
Cash flow used in investing activities totalled $69.6 million in 2009 compared to $64.1 million in 2008. The
$5.5 million increase was due primarily to higher capital expenditures in 2009 compared to 2008. A summary of
2009 and 2008 capital and intangible asset expenditures follows.

($millions)

2009

2008

Electricity System
Generation
Transmission
Substations
Distribution
Intangible Assets and Other
Capital and Intangible Asset Expenditures

8.8
4.4
8.2
38.8
13.9
74.1

4.1
5.2
7.5
35.5
15.0
67.3
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The Company’s business is capital intensive. Capital investment is required to ensure continued and enhanced
performance, reliability and safety of the electricity system, and to meet customer growth. All costs considered to
be repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Capital investment also arises for information technology
systems and for general facilities, equipment and vehicles. Capital expenditures, and property, plant and equipment
repairs and maintenance expense, can vary from year-to-year depending upon both planned electricity system
expenditures and unplanned expenditures arising from weather or other unforeseen events.
The Company’s annual capital plan requires prior PUB approval. Variances between actual and planned expenditures
are generally subject to PUB review prior to inclusion in the Company’s rate base.
The PUB has approved the Company’s 2010 capital plan which provides for capital expenditures of approximately
$64.7 million, approximately half of which relate to construction and capital maintenance of the electricity
distribution system.

Financing Activities
Cash flow from financing activities totalled $14.9 million in 2009 compared to cash used in financing activities
of $21.4 million in 2008. The $36.3 million increase in cash from financing activities was primarily required to
finance lower cash from operations, higher capital expenditures and payment of higher common share dividends
to maintain a capital structure composed of 55% debt and 45% common equity.
The Company has historically generated sufficient annual cash flows from operating activities to service annual
interest and sinking fund payments on debt, to pay dividends and to finance a major portion of its annual capital
program. Additional financing to fully fund the annual capital program is primarily obtained through the Company’s
bank credit facilities and these borrowings are periodically refinanced along with any maturing bonds through the
issuance of long-term first mortgage sinking fund bonds. The Company currently does not expect any material
changes in these basic cash flow and financing dynamics over the foreseeable future.

Debt:

In May 2009, the Company issued 30-year, 6.606% Series AM first mortgage bonds in the amount of

$65 million. Net proceeds from this issuance were used to repay amounts outstanding under the Company’s credit
facilities. These amounts were previously borrowed primarily in relation to the Company’s capital expenditure
program. The issuance of additional bonds is subject to PUB approval and to an earnings test whereby the ratio
of (i) annual earnings, before tax and bond interest, to (ii) annual bond interest incurred plus annual bond interest
to be incurred on the contemplated bond issue, must be two times or higher. The Company expects to be able to
issue bonds in the normal course for the foreseeable future.
The Company’s credit facilities are comprised of a $100 million committed revolving term credit facility and a
$20 million uncommitted demand facility. Details follow.

($millions)
Total Credit Facilities
Borrowing, Committed Facility
Credit Facilities Available
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2009

2008

120.0
(13.5)
106.5

120.0
(32.0)
88.0

The committed facility matures in August 2011. Subject to lenders’ approval, two years prior to maturity, the
Company may request an extension for a further period of 364 days. During 2009, the Company opted not to
extend the committed facility for the additional 364 days. In 2010, one year prior to maturity, the Company may
request an extension for a further period of up to one year and 364 days.

Pensions:

As at December 31, 2009, the fair value of the Company’s primary defined benefit pension plan

assets was $242.7 million compared to fair value of plan assets of $212.6 million as at December 31, 2008. The
fair value of plan assets at the beginning of 2008 was $259.7 million. Details of the changes are included in Note
8 to the Company’s 2009 annual audited financial statements. The increase in the fair value of pension plan assets
during 2009 was mainly driven by the recovery of global financial market conditions.
In April 2009, Newfoundland Power received the Actuarial Valuation Report for its defined benefit pension plan.
This report included the funding status of the plan as at December 31, 2008 on a going concern and solvency
basis.
The going concern and solvency valuation was based on an adjusted market related value method to determine the
actuarial value of assets. Under this method, investment gains (losses) arising during a given year are spread on
a straight line basis over three years; within a 5% corridor of the fair value of the assets for the solvency valuation.
The actuarial value of the assets, determined as at December 31, 2008 under the adjusted market value method for
the going concern and solvency valuation was $251.4 million and $222.7 million, respectively.
Based on the report, the solvency deficit as at December 31, 2008 was $6.9 million ($7.7 million inclusive of
interest). The solvency deficit is being funded over a five-year period, commencing in 2009. The Company fulfilled
its 2009 annual solvency deficit funding requirement of $1.5 million during the second quarter of 2009.
The Company does not expect any difficulty in its ability to meet future pension funding requirements as it expects
the amounts will be financed from a combination of cash generated from operations and amounts available for
borrowing under existing credit facilities.

Contractual Obligations:

Details, as at December 31, 2009, of all contractual obligations over the

subsequent five years and thereafter, follow.

($millions)

Total

2010

2011-2012

2013-2014

2015 Onward

Credit Facilities (unsecured)
First Mortgage Sinking Fund Bonds1
Pension Solvency Deficit2
Total

13.5
468.9
6.2
488.6

5.2
1.5
6.7

13.5
10.4
3.1
27.0

39.0
1.6
40.6

414.3
414.3

1 First mortgage sinking fund bonds are secured by a first fixed and specific charge on capital assets owned or to be acquired by the Company and carry customary
covenants.
2 Pension funding requirements based on the Actuarial Valuation Report associated with the Company’s defined benefit pension plan, completed as at December 31, 2008.
This does not include routine funding requirements for current service cost.
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Credit Ratings and Capital Structure:

To ensure continued access to capital at reasonable cost, the

Company endeavours to maintain its investment grade credit ratings. Details of the Company’s investment grade
bond ratings as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 follow.

2009
Rating Agency
Moody’s Investors Service
Dominion Bond Rating Service

2008

Rating

Outlook

Rating

Outlook

A2
A

Stable
Stable

Baa1
A

Stable
Stable

On August 3, 2009, Moody’s upgraded Newfoundland Power’s investment grade bond rating from “Baa1” to
“A2”. Moody’s also assigned a “Baa1” issuer rating to Newfoundland Power. The Company’s investment grade
bond rating and rating outlook from Dominion Bond Rating Service remain unchanged from 2008.
Newfoundland Power endeavours, by managing common share dividends, to maintain a capital structure composed
of 55% debt and 45% common equity. This capital structure is reflected in customer rates and is consistent with
the Company’s current investment grade credit ratings. The Company’s capital structure as at December 31, 2009
and 2008 follows.

2009
Total Debt1
Common Equity
Preferred Equity
Total

2008

$millions

%

$millions

%

473.9
381.2
9.1
864.2

54.8
44.1
1.1
100.0

437.5
373.7
9.4
820.6

53.3
45.5
1.2
100.0

1 Includes bank indebtedness, or net of cash, if applicable.

The Company currently expects it will be able to maintain its current investment grade credit ratings in 2010.

Capital Stock and Dividends:

For the years ended 2009 and 2008, the weighted average number of

common shares outstanding was 10,320,270. Dividends on common shares, for 2009, compared to 2008, were
$9.9 million higher. In 2009, common quarterly dividends increased to $0.61 per share compared to $0.37 per
share in 2008. The increase in common share dividends was to maintain an average capital structure that includes
approximately 45% common equity.
During 2009, the Company redeemed 24,125 preference shares for consideration of approximately $0.2 million.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company provides services to, and receives services from, its parent company, Fortis and other subsidiaries
of Fortis. The Company also incurs charges from Fortis for the recovery of general corporate expenses incurred by
Fortis. These transactions are in the normal course of business and are recorded at their exchange amounts.
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Related party transactions included in revenue, operating expenses, finance charges and included in accounts
receivable as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 follow.

($millions)
Revenue1
Operating Expenses
Finance Charges
Accounts Receivable

2009

2008

4.5
1.6
0.1

4.2
1.5
0.3
0.2

1 Includes charges for electricity consumed.

In 2008, the Company borrowed $32.5 million from Fortis as a short-term demand loan at an interest rate of 3.15%,
which was indicative of Bankers’ Acceptance rates at the time. This amount was fully repaid in 2008. There were
no amounts borrowed from Fortis in 2009.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying values of financial instruments included in current assets, current liabilities, other financial assets,
and other financial liabilities approximate their fair value, reflecting their nature, short-term maturity or normal
trade credit terms. The fair value of long-term debt is calculated by discounting the future cash flows of each debt
instrument at the estimated yield-to-maturity equivalent to benchmark government bonds, with similar terms to
maturity, plus a market credit risk premium equal to that of issuers of similar credit quality. Since the Company
does not intend to settle its debt instruments before maturity, the fair value estimate does not represent the actual
liability, and therefore, does not include exchange or settlement costs.
The estimated fair value of the Company’s first mortgage sinking fund bonds was $577.6 million at
December 31, 2009 and $505.1 million at December 31, 2008. The reason for the significant change was the
issuance of $65 million 30-year first mortgage sinking fund bonds during the second quarter of 2009.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT
Regulation:

The Company is subject to normal uncertainties facing entities that operate under cost of service

regulation. It is dependent on PUB approval of customer electricity rates that permit a reasonable opportunity to
recover on a timely basis the estimated costs of providing electricity service, including a fair and reasonable return
on rate base. The ability to recover the actual costs of providing service and to earn the approved rates of return
depends on achieving the forecasts established in the rate setting process. Between general rate applications, the
setting of customer rates through the Formula can cause earnings and cash flows to increase or decrease due to
corresponding changes in bond yields which are beyond the Company’s control.

Economic Conditions:

Economic conditions primarily impact the performance of the Company’s defined

benefit pension plan, cost of capital and electricity sales. The impact on pensions and cost of capital are discussed
below. Electricity sales are influenced by economic factors in the Company’s service territory such as changes in
employment levels, personal disposable income, energy prices and housing starts. Out-migration in rural areas,
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as well as declining birth rates and increasing death rates associated with an aging population also affect sales.
Modest sales growth is currently expected for 2010; however, economic conditions may impact actual future
sales.

Pension:

The Company’s defined benefit pension plan is impacted by economic conditions as it relates to the

Company’s future pension funding requirements, as discussed in the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section of
this MD&A. Future pension obligations and related pension expense may also be impacted by economic conditions.
The defined benefit pension plan is subject to judgments utilized in the actuarial determination of the pension
obligation and the related pension expense. The primary assumptions utilized by management are the expected
long-term rate of return on pension plan assets and the discount rate used to value the accrued benefit obligation.
A discussion of the critical accounting estimates associated with pensions is provided in the “Critical Accounting
Estimates” section of this MD&A.
There is no assurance that the pension plan assets will earn the expected long-term rate of return in the future.
Market driven changes impacting the performance of the pension plan assets may result in material variations in
actual return on pension plan assets from the expected long-term return on the assets. This may cause material
changes in future pension liabilities and pension expense. Financial market fluctuations may also impact the
discount rate resulting in material variations in future pension liabilities and pension expense.
As discussed under the “Financial Highlights” section of this MD&A, for 2010 and onwards, the PUB has approved
the creation of a PEVDA to deal with the differences between defined benefit pension expense calculated in
accordance with Canadian GAAP and pension expense approved by the PUB for rate setting purposes. Variations
in pension expense from that approved by the PUB for rate setting purposes would be recovered from (returned
to) customers through the Company’s rate stabilization account. This deferral account substantially mitigates the
Company’s earnings risk associated with the volatility of its defined benefit pension expense.
There is also measurement uncertainty associated with pension expense, future funding requirements, the accrued
benefit asset, accrued benefit liability and benefit obligation inherent in the actuarial valuation process.

Capital Resources:

Global financial market conditions could increase the Company’s cost of capital as well

as impact timing of future long-term bond issues. Market driven changes in interest rates could cause fluctuations
in interest costs associated with the Company’s bank credit facilities. The Company periodically refinances its
credit facilities in the normal course with fixed-rate first mortgage sinking fund bonds, which compose most of its
long-term debt, thereby significantly mitigating exposure to short-term interest rate changes.

Credit Ratings:

The Company does not anticipate any material adverse rating actions by the credit rating

agencies in the near term. However, the recent volatility in the global financial markets has placed increased
scrutiny on rating agencies and rating agency criteria which may result in changes to credit rating practices and
policies.

Electricity Prices:

Increases in electricity rates can cause changes in customer electricity consumption,

which could negatively impact sales and therefore earnings and cash flows. Electricity prices have risen in recent
years primarily due to the flow-through of the rising cost of oil used at Hydro’s thermal generating station. Future
changes or volatility in oil prices may affect electricity prices in a manner that affects sales.
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Effective July 1, 2009, there was an overall average decrease in electricity rates charged to customers of
approximately 6.6%. The decrease is a result of the normal annual operation of Hydro’s Rate Stabilization Plan.
Variances in the cost of fuel used to generate electricity Hydro sells to Newfoundland Power are captured and
flowed-through to the Company’s customers through the operation of the Rate Stabilization Plan. This reduction
in customer rates had no impact on earnings for Newfoundland Power.

Competition:

The Company currently does not expect any significant loss in heating market share to its

primary competitor which is furnace oil. Natural gas is not expected to enter the Company’s service territory in the
foreseeable future.

Purchased Power Cost:

The Company is dependent on Hydro for approximately 92% of its electricity

requirements. Purchased Power costs are based on a wholesale demand and energy rate structure. The demand
and energy rate structure presents the risk of volatility in purchased power costs due to uncertainty in forecasting
energy sales and peak billing demand.
Effective January 1, 2008, the PUB ordered the operation of the demand management incentive account (the
“DMI”). The DMI limits variations in the unit cost of purchased power related to demand up to 1% of total demand
costs reflected in customer rates, or approximately $0.5 million for 2009. The disposition of balances in this
account, which would be determined by a further order of the PUB, will consider the merits of the Company’s
conservation and demand management activities.
With respect to energy charges, as a result of January 1, 2007 changes in Hydro’s wholesale rates, the marginal
cost of purchased power now exceeds the average cost of purchased power that is embedded in customer rates.
To the extent actual electricity sales in any period exceed forecast electricity sales used to set customer rates, the
marginal purchased power expense will exceed related revenue. These supply cost dynamics had no material effect
on 2009 earnings because the PUB ordered, for 2008 to 2010, that variations in purchased power expense caused
by differences between the actual unit cost of energy purchased and that reflected in customer rates be recovered
from (returned to) customers through the Company’s rate stabilization account. Pursuant to the Company’s
2010 GRA, the PUB has ordered the continued use of the energy supply cost variance reserve.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities:

The accounting methods that give rise to, and the settlement of,

regulatory assets and liabilities are determined by the PUB and may impact the Company’s future cash flows.

Health, Safety and Environment:

The Company is subject to numerous and increasing environmental,

health and safety laws, regulations and guidelines governing hazardous substances and other waste materials.
Electricity is itself a hazardous commodity. Damages and costs could potentially arise due to a variety of events,
including severe weather, human error or misconduct, and equipment failure. There is no assurance that any costs
which might arise would be recoverable through customer rates and, if substantial, unrecovered costs could have
a material adverse effect on the results of operations, cash flows and financial position of the Company. A focus on
safety and the environment is an integral and continuing component of the Company’s core business strategy.
2009 was the Company’s second full year under the internationally recognized Occupational Health and Safety
Assessment Series 18001 Health and Safety Management System. Continuing to meet this standard improves
the Company’s ability to capture and track information related to safe work practices and hazard recognition, and
enhanced safety management.
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A key element of environmental management is the Company’s environmental management system (“EMS”). The
Company’s EMS is designed to mitigate the risks associated with the potential release of hazardous substances
into the air, water and soil as part of its day-to-day operations. The Company’s EMS is compliant with the
International Organization for Standardization 14001 standard. One key hazard relates to the risk of air, soil and
water contamination that could stem from the storage of large volumes of fuel and the use of other petroleum
based products in day-to-day operating and maintenance activities. In addition, key hazards related to hydroelectric
generation operations are the creation of artificial water flows that may disrupt natural habitats and the storage of
large volumes of water for the purposes of electricity generation.
In conjunction with the operation of its EMS, the Company is materially compliant with the governing environmental
laws under which it must operate. At December 31, 2009, there are no environmental liabilities included in the
Company’s annual audited financial statements and there are no material unrecorded environmental liabilities.

Insurance:

While the Company maintains a comprehensive insurance program, the Company’s transmission

and distribution assets (i.e. poles and wires) are not covered under insurance for physical damage. This is customary
in North America as the cost of the coverage is not considered economical. Insurance is subject to coverage limits
as well as time-sensitive claims discovery and reporting provisions and there is no assurance that the types of
liabilities that may be incurred by the Company will be covered by insurance.
For material uninsured losses, the Company expects that it would seek regulatory relief. However, there is no
assurance that regulatory relief would be received. Any major damage to the physical assets of the Company could
result in repair costs and customer claims that are substantial in amount and which could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows and financial position.
It is expected that existing insurance coverage will be maintained. However, there is no assurance that the Company
will be able to obtain or maintain adequate insurance in the future at rates considered reasonable or that insurance
will continue to be available on terms comparable to those now existing.

Weather:

The physical assets of the Company are exposed to the effects of severe weather conditions and

other acts of nature. Although the physical assets have been constructed, operated and maintained to withstand
severe weather, there is no assurance that they will successfully do so in all circumstances. This could result in the
interruption of electricity service in a manner that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of
operations, cash flows and financial position.

Labour Relations:

Approximately 54% of the employees of the Company are members of the International

Brotherhood of Electrical Workers labour union (the “IBEW”) which had entered into two collective bargaining
agreements with the Company. The two agreements expire on September 30, 2011. The inability to maintain or
renew the collective bargaining agreements on acceptable terms could result in increased labour costs, or service
level declines associated with job action, which could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations,
cash flows and financial position of the Company.
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2009 ACCOUNTING CHANGES
Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the new CICA

Handbook Section 3064, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, which effectively converges Canadian GAAP for goodwill and
intangible assets with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Adoption of this standard resulted
in the reclassification of certain assets previously included in property, plant and equipment to intangible assets.
The items that were reclassified consist of certain computer software and land rights. As at December 31, 2008,
$13.8 million and $2.3 million were reclassified to intangible assets on the balance sheet related to certain computer
software and land rights, respectively.

Rate Regulated Operations:

Effective January 1, 2009, the Accounting Standards Board (“AcSB”)

amended: (i) CICA Handbook Section 1100, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles removing the temporary exemption
providing relief to entities subject to rate regulation from the requirement to apply the Section to the recognition
and measurement of assets and liabilities arising from rate regulation; and (ii) Section 3465, Income Taxes to require
the recognition of future income tax liabilities and assets as well as offsetting regulatory assets and liabilities by
entities subject to rate regulation.
Effective January 1, 2009, with the removal of the temporary exemption in Section 1100, the Company must
now apply Section 1100 to the recognition of assets and liabilities arising from rate regulation. Certain assets and
liabilities arising from rate regulation continue to have specific guidance under a primary source of Canadian GAAP
that applies only to the particular circumstances described therein, including those arising under Section 3061,

Property, Plant and Equipment, Section 3465, Income Taxes, and Section 3475, Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and Discontinued
Operations. The assets and liabilities arising from rate regulation, as described in Note 4 to the 2009 Annual
Financial Statements, do not have specific guidance under a primary source of Canadian GAAP. Therefore, Section
1100 directs the Company to adopt accounting policies that are developed through the exercise of professional
judgment and the application of concepts described in Section 1000, Financial Statement Concepts. In developing
these accounting policies, the Company may consult other sources including pronouncements issued by bodies
authorized to issue accounting standards in other jurisdictions. Therefore, in accordance with Section 1100, the
Company has determined that its regulatory assets and liabilities qualify for recognition under Canadian GAAP
and this recognition is consistent with U.S. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, Accounting for

the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation. Therefore, there was no effect on the Company’s financial statements as at
January 1, 2009 due to the removal of the temporary exemption in Section 1100.
Effective January 1, 2009, the impact of the amendment to Section 3465, Income Taxes is the recognition of future
income tax assets and liabilities and related regulatory liabilities and assets for the amount of future income taxes
expected to be refunded to, or recovered from, customers in future electricity rates. In accordance with the revised
standard, as at January 1, 2009, the Company’s future income tax liability increased by approximately $118 million
with a corresponding change to regulatory assets and liabilities of approximately $118 million. Included in the
amounts are the future income tax effects of the expected subsequent settlement of the related regulatory assets
and liabilities through future customer rates. This change does not affect the Company’s earnings or cash flows.
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Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities:

Effective January 1, 2009,

the Company adopted the new Emerging Issues Committee Abstract (“EIC-173”) of the CICA Handbook, which
was issued on January 20, 2009. EIC-173 requires the Company’s own credit risk and the credit risk of its counter
parties be taken into account in determining the fair value of a financial instrument. There was no effect on the
Company’s financial statements as a result of adopting EIC-173.

FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGES
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”):

In October 2009, the AcSB issued a third

and final Omnibus Exposure Draft confirming that publicly accountable enterprises in Canada will be required to
apply IFRS, in full and without modification, beginning January 1, 2011. The Company’s expected IFRS transition
date of January 1, 2011 will require the restatement, for comparative purposes, of amounts reported by the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2010, and of amounts reported on the Company’s opening IFRS
balance sheet as at January 1, 2010.
The Company is continuing to assess the financial reporting impacts of adopting IFRS in 2011. While the full
impact on future financial position and results of operations is not fully determinable or estimable at this time,
proposals put forth by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) in its July 2009 Exposure Draft – Rate

Regulated Activities, if adopted, should reduce earnings’ volatility that may have otherwise resulted under IFRS, in the
absence of an accounting standard for rate regulated activities. The Company does anticipate a significant increase
in disclosure resulting from the adoption of IFRS and is identifying and assessing these additional disclosure
requirements, as well as system changes that will be necessary to compile the required disclosures.
Differences between IFRS and Canadian GAAP, in addition to those referenced below under “Accounting Policy
Impacts and Decisions”, may continue to be identified based on further detailed analysis by the Company, the
outcome of a final standard on accounting for rate regulated activities and other changes in IFRS prior to the
Company’s conversion to IFRS in 2011.

IFRS Conversion Project:

The Company commenced its IFRS conversion project in 2007 and has established

a formal project governance structure which includes the Audit & Risk Committee and senior management. An
external advisor has been engaged to assist in the IFRS conversion project. Project progress reports are provided to
the Company’s Audit & Risk Committee on a quarterly basis. The Company has also engaged its external auditors,
Ernst & Young, LLP, to review accounting policy determinations as they are arrived at and agreed to internally by
the Company’s project team.
The Company’s IFRS conversion project consists of three phases: (i) scoping and diagnostics, (ii) analysis and
development, and (iii) implementation and review.

Phase One:

Scoping and diagnostics, which involved project planning and staffing and identification of

differences between current Canadian GAAP and IFRS, was completed in the first half of 2008. The identified
areas of accounting difference of highest potential impact to the Company, based on existing IFRS at the time,
were identified to include: rate regulated accounting; property, plant and equipment; provisions and contingent
liabilities; employee benefits; income taxes; and initial adoption of IFRS under the provisions of IFRS 1, First-Time

Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS 1”).
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Phase Two:

Analysis and development is nearing completion and involves detailed diagnostics and evaluation

of the financial impacts of various options and alternative methodologies provided for under IFRS; identification
and design of operational and financial business processes; initial staff training and Audit & Risk Committee
orientation; analysis of IFRS 1 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions to the general requirement for full
retrospective application upon transition; summarization of 2011 IFRS disclosure requirements; and development
of required solutions to address identified issues.

Phase Three:

Implementation and review has commenced and involves the execution of changes to information

systems and business processes; completion of formal authorization processes to approve recommended accounting
policy changes; and further training programs across the Company, as necessary. It will culminate in the collection
of financial information necessary to compile IFRS-compliant financial statements and reconciliations; embedding
of IFRS in business processes; and Audit & Risk Committee approval of IFRS-compliant interim and annual financial
statements for 2011.

Accounting for Rate Regulated Activities under IFRS:

IFRS does not currently provide specific

guidance with respect to accounting for rate regulated activities. However, in December 2008, the IASB initiated
a project on accounting for rate regulated activities and whether or not rate regulated entities could or should
recognize assets or liabilities as a result of rate regulation imposed by a regulatory body.
On July 23, 2009, the IASB issued Exposure Draft - Rate Regulated Activities together with a request for public
comments by November 20, 2009. Based on the current project timeline of the IASB, a final standard is expected
to be issued in the second quarter of 2010. A project update with respect to both direction and timing is expected
to result from the IASB’s February 2010 meeting.
Based on the Exposure Draft, as it currently exists, regulatory assets and liabilities arising from activities subject
to cost of service regulation would be recognized under IFRS based on the measurement of their expected present
value. Subject to finalizing a methodology for estimating expected present value, the ability to record regulatory
assets and liabilities, as proposed, should reduce the earnings’ volatility of the Company that may have otherwise
resulted under IFRS in the absence of an accounting standard for rate regulated activities, but will result in the
requirement to provide enhanced balance sheet presentation and note disclosures. Continued uncertainty as to the
final outcome of the Exposure Draft, and a final standard on accounting for rate regulated activities under IFRS,
has resulted in the Company being unable to reasonably estimate and conclude on the impact on the Company’s
future financial position and results of operations with respect to differences, if any, in accounting for rate regulated
activities under IFRS versus Canadian GAAP.

Accounting Policy Impacts and Decisions:

The Company has completed an initial assessment of the

impacts of adopting IFRS, based on the standards as they currently exist, and has identified the following as having
the greatest potential to impact the Company’s accounting policies, financial reporting and information systems
requirements upon conversion to IFRS. However, final conclusions cannot be reached at this time pending a final
IFRS standard on accounting for rate regulated activities.
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(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
IFRS and Canadian GAAP contain the same basic principles of accounting for property, plant and equipment;
however, differences in application do exist. Specifically, there may be changes in accounting for:
i.

the amount of capitalized overheads;

ii.

the capitalization of major inspections that were previously expensed under Canadian GAAP;

iii. the capitalization of depreciation for which future economic benefits of that asset are absorbed in the
production of another asset;
iv. the capitalization of borrowing costs in accordance with IAS 23, Borrowing Costs; and,
v.

the recognition of gains and losses on property, plant and equipment.

However, the IASB’s Exposure Draft - Rate Regulated Activities proposes that, in the case of qualifying rate regulated
entities, amounts approved by the regulator for inclusion in the cost of self-constructed property, plant and
equipment for rate-making purposes shall also be included in the cost of these assets for financial reporting
purposes, even if the entity would not otherwise be permitted to include these costs in the cost of its property,
plant and equipment based on application of IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment.
IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment also requires an allocation of the amount initially recognized in respect of an
item of property, plant and equipment to its significant parts and the depreciation of each such part separately.
This method of componentizing property, plant and equipment may result in an increase in the number of
component parts that are recorded and depreciated and, as a result, may impact the calculation of depreciation
expense.
The Exposure Draft - Rate Regulated Activities proposes a new transitional exemption for qualifying rate regulated
entities that will allow them to use, as of the date of transition, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment under Canadian GAAP as the deemed cost under IFRS. The Company will likely avail of this
exemption, should the Exposure Draft be adopted as proposed.
The final estimate of the impact of applying IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment by the Company, and elective
options with respect to accounting for property, plant and equipment upon transition to IFRS, cannot be made
at this time pending a final standard on accounting for rate regulated activities.
(b)		Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets requires a provision to be recognized when (i) there is a
present obligation as a result of a past transaction or event; (ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and (iii) a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. Under Canadian GAAP
the criterion for recognition is “likely”, which is a higher threshold than “probable”. It is possible, therefore,
that some contingent liabilities which would meet the recognition criterion under IFRS would not have been
recognized under Canadian GAAP.
In January 2010, the IASB published an Exposure Draft - Measurement of Liabilities in IAS 37 (“ED/2010/1”). The
publication of ED/2010/1 is part of a larger IASB project which has been ongoing since 2005 and which is
intended to result in a new IFRS to replace IAS 37. ED/2010/1 is open for public comment until April 12, 2010.
Based on comments received on ED/2010/1, and previous tentative decisions by the IASB with respect to other
aspects of IAS 37, a final IFRS to replace IAS 37 is planned for release in the third quarter of 2010.
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(c)		Employee Benefits
IAS 19, Employee Benefits requires the past service cost of defined benefit plans to be expensed on an accelerated
basis, with vested past service costs being expensed immediately and unvested past service costs being
recognized on a straight-line basis until the benefits become vested. Under Canadian GAAP, past service costs
are generally amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average remaining service period of active
employees in the defined benefit plan.
IAS 19, Employee Benefits requires defined benefit pension plan assets to be measured at fair market value for
the purposes of determining pension expense. Under Canadian GAAP, pension plan assets of the Company are
currently measured at the market-related value as described in Note 2 in the Company’s 2009 annual audited
financial statements. In addition, actuarial gains and losses under IFRS are permitted to be recognized directly
in equity rather than through earnings, and IFRS 1 also provides an option to recognize immediately in retained
earnings all cumulative actuarial gains and losses existing as at the date of transition to IFRS.
The Company maintains a defined benefit pension plan and supplementary and other post-employment benefit
plans which will be subject to different accounting treatment under IFRS as compared to Canadian GAAP.
The full extent of the impact of applying IAS 19, Employee Benefits cannot be made at this time, pending a final
standard on accounting for rate regulated activities.
(d)		Income Taxes
IAS 12, Income Taxes prescribes that an entity account for the tax consequences of transactions and other
events in the same way that it accounts for the transactions and other events themselves. Therefore, where
transactions and other events are recognized in earnings, the recognition of deferred tax assets or liabilities
which arise from those transactions should also be recorded in earnings. For transactions that are recognized
outside of the statement of earnings, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, any related tax
effects should also be recognized outside of the statement of earnings.
The most significant impact of IAS 12, Income Taxes on the Company will be derived directly from the accounting
policy decisions made under IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment and other IFRS, if applicable. In addition, the
Company currently accounts for income taxes based on regulatory decisions. Therefore, the impact on the
Company of accounting for the tax consequences of transactions and other events under IFRS versus Canadian
GAAP cannot be fully determined at this time pending a final IFRS standard on accounting for rate regulated
activities.
(e)		IFRS 1, First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 1 provides the framework for the first time adoption of IFRS and specifies that, in general, an entity
shall apply the principles under IFRS retrospectively. IFRS 1 also specifies that the adjustments that arise on
retrospective conversion to IFRS from Canadian GAAP should be directly recognized in retained earnings.
Certain optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions to retrospective application are provided for under IFRS
1.
The Company has completed an analysis of IFRS 1. While preliminary decisions have been made with respect
to the elective exemptions available upon transition, final decisions cannot be made at this time pending a final
IFRS standard on the accounting for rate regulated activities.
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(f)		Information Systems
It is anticipated that the adoption of IFRS will have some impact on information systems requirements. The
Company has assessed the need for system upgrades or modifications to ensure an efficient conversion to
IFRS. The extent of the impact on the Company’s information systems is largely dependent upon the final IFRS
standard on accounting for rate regulated activities and is, therefore, not fully determinable at this time.
The IASB has a number of on-going projects on its agenda, in addition to the project on accounting for rate
regulated activities, that may result in changes to existing IFRS prior to the Company’s conversion to IFRS in
2011. The Company continues to monitor these projects and the impact that any resulting IFRS changes may
have on its accounting policies, financial position or results of operations under IFRS for 2011 and beyond.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Preparation of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP requires management to
make estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses,
and related disclosure of contingencies and commitments. Estimates and judgements are based on historical
experience, current conditions and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates and judgements under different assumptions or
conditions. The critical accounting estimates involving the more significant estimates and judgements used in the
preparation of the Company’s 2009 annual audited financial statements follow.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets Amortization:

By its nature,

amortization is an estimate based primarily on the useful lives of assets. Estimated useful lives are based on
current facts and historical information, and take into consideration the anticipated physical lives of the assets.
Newfoundland Power’s amortization methodology, including amortization rates, accumulated amortization and
estimated remaining service lives, is subject to a periodic study by external experts. The difference between actual
accumulated amortization and that indicated by the amortization study is amortized and included in customer rates
in a manner prescribed by the PUB.
The most recent amortization study, based on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in service as
at December 31, 2005, indicated an accumulated amortization variance of approximately $0.7 million. The PUB
ordered that this variance be amortized equally over 2008-2011 and that the revised amortization rates arising from
the amortization study be implemented effective January 1, 2008. As a result, the total composite amortization rate
declined from 3.5% to 3.4%. These changes did not have a significant impact on the Company’s earnings, cash
flow or financial position because the changes were reflected in the customer rates effective January 1, 2008. As
part of the 2010 GRA, the PUB ordered the next amortization study to be based on property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets in service as at December 31, 2009.
The estimate of future removal and site restoration costs, net of salvage proceeds, is based on historical experience
and future expected cost trends. The balance of this regulatory liability at December 31, 2009 was $48.7 million
(December 31, 2008 - $48.0 million). The net amount of estimated future removal and site restoration costs
provided for and reported in amortization expense during 2009 was $4.8 million (2008 - $4.6 million).
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Capitalized Overhead:

Newfoundland Power capitalizes overhead costs which are not directly attributable

to specific capital assets, but which relate to the overall capital expenditure program. Capitalization reflects
estimates of the portions of various general expenses that relate to the overall capital expenditures program in
accordance with a methodology ordered by the PUB. These general expenses capitalized (“GEC”) are allocated over
constructed property, plant and equipment and amortized over their estimated service lives. In 2009, GEC totalled
$3.0 million (2008 - $2.8 million). Changes to the methodology for calculating and allocating general overhead costs
to property, plant and equipment could have a material impact on the amounts recorded as operating expenses
versus property, plant and equipment. However, any change in the fundamental methodology for the calculation
and allocation of GEC would require the approval of the PUB.

Employee Future Benefits:

The Company’s primary defined benefit pension plan is subject to judgments

utilized in the actuarial determination of the expense and related obligation. The primary assumptions utilized by
management in determining the pension expense and the accrued benefit obligation are the discount rate and the
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. All defined benefit pension plan assumptions are assessed and
concluded in consultation with the Company’s external actuarial advisor.
The discount rate as at December 31, 2009, which is utilized to determine the accrued benefit obligation and
the 2010 pension expense, is 6.5% compared to the discount rate of 7.5% as at December 31, 2008. Discount
rates reflect market interest rates on high quality bonds with cash flows that match the timing and amount of
expected pension benefit payments. This methodology is consistent with that used to determine the discount rate
in the previous year. The decrease in discount rates reflects the decreased credit spreads and cost of capital on
investment grade corporate bonds.
The expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assets which is used to estimate the 2010 defined benefit
pension expense is 7.0%, consistent with 2009. The actual rate of return on pension plan assets during 2009 was
approximately 17.1%. As in previous years, an actuary provided the Company with a range of expected long-term
pension asset returns based on their internal modelling. The expected long-term return on pension plan assets of
7.0% falls within the normal to optimistic range as indicated by the actuary.
In 2010, the Company expects the pension expense related to its primary defined benefit pension plan to increase
by approximately $4.8 million compared to 2009. This is primarily driven by the amortization of 2008 experience
losses associated with the pension plan assets and a lower discount rate.
The following table provides sensitivity to the changes in the primary assumptions associated with the Company’s
defined benefit pension plan:

Pension Expense1

($millions)
Impact
Impact
Impact
Impact

of
of
of
of

increasing rate of return on assets assumption by 100 basis points (bps)
decreasing the rate of return on assets assumption by 100 bps
increasing the discount rate assumption used during 2009 by 100 bps
decreasing the discount rate assumption used during 2009 by 100 bps

(2.5)
2.5
(0.5)
2.2

1 The volatility of future pension expense has been significantly mitigated with the PUB approved PEVDA in which pension expense calculated in accordance with Canadian
GAAP and pension expense approved by the PUB for rate setting purposes would be recovered from (returned to) customers through the Company’s rate stabilization
account.
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Other assumptions are the average rate of compensation increase, average remaining service life of the active
employee group, and mortality rates.
The Company’s other post-retirement benefits are also subject to judgements utilized in the actuarial determination
of the expense and related obligation. Assumptions utilized by management in determining other post-employment
benefit plan costs and obligations include the health care cost trend rate and the foregoing assumptions, excluding
the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets and average rate of compensation increase.
In accordance with PUB orders, Newfoundland Power expenses the cost of other post-employment benefits on
a cash basis, whereby the difference between the cash payments during the year and the expense incurred in
the year is deferred as a regulatory asset. Therefore, changes in assumptions cause changes in the regulatory
asset and do not impact earnings. Other post-employment benefits costs deferred as a regulatory asset in 2009
totalled $5.6 million (2008 - $6.6 million) and the regulatory asset at December 31, 2009 was $46.7 million
(2008 - $41.1 million).

Asset Retirement Obligations:

The measurement of the fair value of asset retirement obligations

(“AROs”) requires the Company to make reasonable estimates about the method of settlement and settlement
dates associated with legally obligated asset retirement costs. While the Company has AROs for its
generation assets and certain distribution and transmission assets, there were no amounts recognized as at
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008. The nature, amount and timing of AROs for hydroelectric generation
assets cannot be reasonably estimated at this time as these assets are expected to effectively operate in perpetuity
given their nature. In the event that environmental issues are identified or hydroelectric generation assets are
decommissioned, AROs will be recorded at that time provided the costs can be reasonably estimated. It is
management’s judgment that identified AROs for its remaining assets are immaterial.

Revenue Recognition:

The Company recognizes electricity revenue on an accrual basis. Customer bills

are issued throughout the month based on meter readings that establish electricity consumption by the customer
since the last meter reading. The unbilled revenue accrual for each period is based on estimated electricity sales
to customers for the period since the last meter reading at the rates approved by the PUB. The development of the
electricity sales estimates requires analysis of electricity consumption on a historical basis in relation to key inputs
such as the current price of electricity, population growth, economic activity, weather conditions and electricity
system losses. The estimation process for accrued unbilled electricity consumption will result in adjustments to
electricity revenue in the period during which the difference between actual results and those estimated becomes
known. As at December 31, 2009, the amount of accrued unbilled revenue was approximately $29.3 million
(December 31, 2008 - $30.5 million).
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SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION
2009

2008

20071

527.2
32.6

516.9
32.3

491.7
29.9

1,188.0
716.4
390.3

1,001.9
534.6
383.1

985.9
537.7
366.0

3.16
2.44
2.56

3.13
1.48
2.56

2.89
0.88
2.56

($millions, except per share amounts)
Results of Operations
Revenue
Net Earnings Applicable to Common Shares
Finance Position
Total Assets
Total Long-term Liabilities
Shareholders’ Equity
Per Share Data
Earnings Applicable to Common Shares2
Common Dividends Declared2
Preferred Dividends Declared3

1 Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform with the presentation for 2009.
2 Basic and fully diluted. Based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, which was 10,320,270 common shares in each year.
3 Based on the aggregate weighted average number of preference shares outstanding in each year, which was 911,098 in 2009 and 935,223 in both 2008 and 2007. In 2009,
the Company repurchased 24,125 preference shares at $10 per share (2007 – 100 preference shares at $10 per share; no preference shares were repurchased in 2008).

The changes from 2008 to 2009 have been discussed previously in this MD&A. The increase in net earnings from
2007 to 2008 was primarily the result of a 2.8% increase in customer rates which was effective January 1, 2008. The
increase in total assets from 2007 to 2008 was due primarily to continued investment in the electricity system and
is consistent with the Company’s strategy to provide safe and reliable electricity service at the lowest reasonable
cost. The increase in common dividends from 2007 to 2008 was to maintain a capital structure composed of
approximately 45% common equity and 55% debt.

QUARTERLY RESULTS
First Quarter
March 31
(unaudited)
Electricity Sales (GWh)
Revenue ($millions)

Second Quarter
June 30

Third Quarter
September 30

Fourth Quarter
December 31

2009

2008

2009

2008

2009

2008

2009

2008

1,762.9

1,716.2

1,177.2

1,183.0

885.0

896.8

1,473.9

1,412.2

169.7

164.9

118.1

118.9

92.9

94.1

146.5

139.0

Earnings Applicable to Common
Shares ($millions)
Earnings per Common Share ($)1

6.2

6.2

10.7

10.1

7.1

8.1

8.6

7.9

0.60

0.60

1.04

0.98

0.68

0.79

0.84

0.76

1 Basic and fully diluted.

Seasonality
Sales and Revenue:

Sales and revenue are significantly higher in the first quarter and significantly lower in

the third quarter compared to the remaining quarters. This reflects the seasonality of electricity consumption for
heating.
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Earnings:

Beyond the seasonality of electricity consumption for heating quarterly earnings are impacted by the

purchased power rate structure. The Company pays more, on average, for each kilowatt hour (“kWh”) of purchased
power in the winter months and less, on average, for each kWh of purchased power in the summer months.
These sales, revenues and cost dynamics are expected to yield lower earnings in the first quarter compared to
remaining quarters within any given year.

Trending
Sales and Revenue:

Year-over-year quarterly electricity sales increases primarily reflect modest customer

growth.

Earnings:

Beyond the impact of expected moderate sales growth, future quarterly earnings and earnings per

share are expected to trend with the ROE reflected in customer rates and rate base growth.

OUTLOOK
The Company’s strategy will remain unchanged.
Newfoundland Power is regulated under a cost of service regime. Cost of service regulation entitles the Company
to an opportunity to recover its reasonable cost of providing service, including its cost of capital, in each year. The
PUB, through the Company’s 2010 GRA, has provided Newfoundland Power with a reasonable opportunity to earn
a ROE of 9.0% in 2010. Newfoundland Power expects to maintain its investment grade credit ratings in 2010.
Newfoundland Power is currently assessing the requirement to file an application with the PUB to recover expected
increased costs in 2011.
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Management Report
The accompanying 2009 Financial Statements of Newfoundland Power Inc. and all information in the 2009 Annual
Report have been prepared by management, who are responsible for the integrity of the information presented, including
the amounts that must, of necessity, be based on estimates and informed judgments. These Financial Statements were
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada, including selected accounting treatments
that differ from those used by entities not subject to rate regulation. Financial information contained elsewhere in the 2009
Annual Report is consistent with that in the Financial Statements.
In meeting its responsibility for the reliability and integrity of the Financial Statements, management has developed and
maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides for the necessary internal controls to ensure transactions
are properly authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded and liabilities are recognized. The systems of the Company
focus on the need for training of qualified and professional staff and the effective communication of management guidelines
and policies. The effectiveness of the internal controls of Newfoundland Power Inc. is evaluated on an ongoing basis.
The Board of Directors oversees management’s responsibility for financial reporting through an Audit & Risk Committee
which is composed entirely of external independent directors. The Audit & Risk Committee oversees the external audit
of the Company’s Annual Financial Statements and the accounting and financial reporting and disclosure processes and
policies of the Company. The Audit & Risk Committee meets with management, the shareholders’ auditors and the internal
auditor to discuss the results of the audit, the adequacy of internal accounting controls and the quality and integrity of
financial reporting. The Company’s Annual Financial Statements are reviewed by the Audit & Risk Committee with each
of management and the shareholders’ auditors before the statements are recommended to the Board of Directors for
approval. The shareholders’ auditors have full and free access to the Audit & Risk Committee.
The Audit & Risk Committee has the duty to review the adoption of, and changes in, accounting principles and practices
which have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements and to review and report to the Board of Directors on
policies relating to accounting and financial reporting and disclosure processes. The Audit & Risk Committee has the duty
to review financial reports requiring the approval of the Board of Directors prior to submission to securities commissions
or other regulatory authorities, to assess and review management’s judgments that are material to reported financial
information and to review shareholders’ auditors’ independence and auditors’ fees.
The December 31, 2009 Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis contained in the 2009 Annual
Report were reviewed by the Audit & Risk Committee and, on their recommendation, were approved by the Board of
Directors of Newfoundland Power Inc. Ernst & Young, LLP, independent auditors appointed by the shareholders of
Newfoundland Power Inc. upon recommendation of the Audit & Risk Committee, have performed an audit of the 2009
Financial Statements and their report follows.

Earl Ludlow							
President							
and Chief Executive Officer					

Jocelyn Perry
Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer
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Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders,
Newfoundland Power Inc.
We have audited the balance sheets of Newfoundland Power Inc. (“the Company”) as at December 31, 2009 and 2008
and the statements of earnings, retained earnings and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as
at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants
St. John’s, Canada
January 25, 2010
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Statements of Earnings
For the years ended December 31
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except per share amounts)
2009

2008

$ 527,179
345,656
181,523

$ 516,889
336,658
180,231

49,315
2,673
41,825
3,862
34,555
132,230

47,132
3,040
40,649
3,862
33,507
128,190

Earnings Before Income Taxes
Income taxes (Note 6)

49,293
16,092

52,041
19,146

Net Earnings
Preference share dividends

33,201
573

32,895
554

Revenue
Purchased power
Gross Margin
Operating expenses
Pension and early retirement program costs
Amortization
Amortization true-up deferral (Note 4)
Finance charges (Note 5)

Net Earnings Applicable to Common Shares
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Common Share

$
$

32,628
3.16

$
$

32,341
3.13

Statements of Retained Earnings
For the years ended December 31
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Balance, Beginning of the Year
Net earnings
Dividends
Preference shares
Common shares
Balance, End of the Year

2009

2008

$ 303,417
33,201

$ 286,350
32,895

(573)
(25,181)
$ 310,864

(554)
(15,274)
$ 303,417

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

47 Financial Statements

Balance Sheets
As at December 31
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)
2009

2008
(restated - see Note 3)

Assets
Current assets
Cash
Accounts receivable
Regulatory assets (Note 4)
Materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses
Income taxes receivable
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7)
Regulatory assets (Note 4)
Accrued pension (Note 8)
Intangible assets (Note 9)
Other assets (Note 10)

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued charges
Regulatory liabilities (Note 4)
Current installments of long-term debt (Note 12)
Future income taxes (Notes 2, 3 & 6)
Income taxes payable

$

5,308
64,553
11,023
934
1,376
4,194
87,388
787,218
197,783
97,802
16,113
1,717
$ 1,188,021

619
63,508
9,426
1,016
1,292
75,861
758,812
55,988
93,148
16,145
1,901
$ 1,001,855

$

$

Regulatory liabilities (Note 4)
Other post-employment benefits (Note 8)
Other liabilities (Note 13)
Future income taxes (Notes 2, 3 & 6)
Long-term debt (Note 12)
$
Shareholders’ equity
Common shares (Note 14)
Preference shares (Note 14)
Retained earnings

65,727
9,374
5,200
1,068
81,369
69,207
46,713
3,960
122,426
474,050
797,725

70,321
9,111
310,864
390,296
$ 1,188,021

$

$

65,548
6,428
4,550
7,633
84,159
54,817
41,074
3,927
1,184
433,604
618,765

70,321
9,352
303,417
383,090
$ 1,001,855

Commitments (Note 18)

									
See accompanying notes to financial statements.				

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

									

Jo Mark Zurel			

David Norris

									

Director			

Director
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Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)
2009
Cash From (Used In) Operating Activities
Net earnings
Items not affecting cash
Amortization of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets and other
Change in regulatory assets and liabilities
Future income taxes
Employee future benefits

$

Change in non-cash working capital
Cash From (Used In) Investing Activities
Capital expenditures
Intangible asset expenditures
Contributions from customers
Other
Cash From (Used In) Financing Activities
Repayment of committed credit facility
Proceeds from long-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Proceeds from related party loan
Repayment of related party loan
Payment of debt financing costs
Redemption of preference shares
Dividends
Preference shares
Common shares
Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash, Beginning of the Year
Cash, End of the Year
Cash Flows Include the Following Elements
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

$
$

33,201

2008

$

32,895

38,935
3,162
691
502
(4,416)
72,075

37,547
3,400
305
1,184
(4,471)
70,860

(12,695)
59,380

14,191
85,051

(71,267)
(2,808)
4,575
(107)
(69,607)

(64,959)
(2,374)
3,054
208
(64,071)

(18,500)
65,000
(5,200)
(389)
(241)

(1,000)
(4,550)
32,500
(32,500)
(50)
-

(573)
(25,181)
14,916
4,689
619
5,308

(554)
(15,274)
(21,428)
(448)
1,067
619

34,468
25,057

$
$

33,794
8,665

See accompanying notes to financial statements.				
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2009
Tabular amounts are in thousands of Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted.

1.

Description of the Business
Newfoundland Power Inc. (the “Company” or “Newfoundland Power”) is a regulated electricity utility that
operates an integrated generation, transmission and distribution system throughout the island portion
of Newfoundland and Labrador. The Company is regulated by the Newfoundland and Labrador Board of
Commissioners of Public Utilities (the “PUB”) and serves over 239,000 customers comprising approximately
85% of all electricity consumers in the Province. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fortis Inc.
(“Fortis”). Newfoundland Power has an installed generating capacity of 140 megawatts (“MW”), of which
approximately 97 MW is hydroelectric generation. It generates approximately 8% of its energy needs and
purchases the remainder from Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro (“Hydro”).

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles (“Canadian GAAP”). As a result of rate regulation, the timing of the recognition of certain assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses may differ from that otherwise expected under Canadian GAAP for entities
not subject to rate regulation. These differences are disclosed below and in Note 4.

Regulation
The Company operates under cost of service regulation as administered by the PUB under the Public Utilities
Act (Newfoundland and Labrador) (“Public Utilities Act”).
The Public Utilities Act provides for the PUB’s general supervision of the Company’s utility operations and
requires the PUB to approve, among other things, customer rates, capital expenditures and the issuance of
securities. The Public Utilities Act also entitles the Company an opportunity to recover all reasonable and
prudent costs incurred in providing electricity service to its customers, including a just and reasonable return
on its rate base. The rate base consists of the net assets required by the Company to provide service to
customers.
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The determination of the forecast return on rate base, together with the forecast of all reasonable and prudent
costs, establishes the revenue requirement upon which the Company’s customer rates are determined through
a general rate hearing. Rates are bundled to include generation, transmission and distribution services.
Between general rate hearings, customer rates are established annually through the operation of an automatic
adjustment formula that sets an appropriate annual rate of return on rate base based upon changes in the
forecast cost of common equity. The forecast cost of common equity reflected in customer rates for 2009
was 8.95% (2008 - 8.95%). As a result of the Company’s 2010 General Rate Application (“GRA”), the forecast
cost of common equity to be reflected in customer rates for 2010 is 9.00%. The Company’s approved rate of
return on rate base in 2010 is 8.23%, with a range of 8.05% to 8.41%.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue arising from the amortization of certain regulatory assets and liabilities is recognized in the manner
prescribed by the PUB, as disclosed in Note 4. Otherwise, revenue is recognized under the accrual method
when service is rendered.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at values approved by the PUB as at June 30, 1966, with subsequent
additions at cost.
Contributions in aid of construction represent the cost of utility property, plant and equipment contributed by
customers and government. These contributions are recorded as a reduction in the cost of utility property,
plant and equipment.
The Company capitalizes certain overhead costs not directly attributable to specific property, plant and
equipment but which do relate to its overall capital expenditure program (general expenses capitalized or
“GEC”). The methodology for calculating and allocating GEC among classes of property, plant and equipment
is established by PUB order. In the absence of rate regulation, only those overhead costs directly attributable
to construction activity would be capitalized. In 2009, GEC totalled $3.0 million (2008 - $2.8 million).
The Company capitalizes an allowance for funds used during construction (“AFUDC”), which represents the
cost of debt and equity financing incurred during construction of property, plant and equipment. AFUDC is
calculated in a manner prescribed by the PUB based on a capitalization rate that is the Company’s weighted
average cost of capital. In 2009, the cost of equity financing capitalized as an AFUDC and deducted from
financing charges was approximately $0.3 million (2008 - $0.3 million). In the absence of rate regulation, this
cost of equity financing would be expensed.
Property, plant and equipment are amortized using the straight-line method by applying the amortization
rates approved by the PUB and disclosed below to the average original cost, including GEC and AFUDC, of
the related assets.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)
The composite amortization rates for the Company’s property, plant and equipment, as well as their service
life ranges and average remaining service lives as at December 31, follow.

Service Life (Years)
Composite
Amortization
Rate
Distribution
Transmission and substations
Generation
Transportation and communications
Buildings
Equipment

Average
Remaining

Range

2009

2008

2009

2008

2009

2008

3.1%
2.9
2.6
8.9
2.3
9.0
3.4%

3.1%
2.9
2.6
8.9
2.3
9.0
3.4%

16-65
31-65
13-75
5-30
35-70
5-25

16-65
31-65
13-75
5-30
35-70
5-25

23
26
32
5
27
5

23
26
32
5
27
5

The Company’s amortization methodology, including amortization rates, accumulated amortization and
estimated remaining service lives, is subject to periodic review by external experts (the “Amortization Study”).
The differences between actual accumulated amortization and that indicated by the Amortization Study
(the “Amortization True-Up”) is deferred as a regulatory asset (liability), and is amortized as an increase
(decrease) in amortization expense and included in customer rates in a manner prescribed by the PUB.
See Note 4. The most recent Amortization Study, based on property, plant and equipment in service as at
December 31, 2005, indicates an Amortization True-Up of approximately $0.7 million. The PUB ordered that
it be amortized as a decrease in amortization expense equally over 2008 - 2011. The next amortization study,
as ordered by the PUB pursuant to the 2010 GRA, will be based on property, plant and equipment in service
as at December 31, 2009.
Upon disposition, the original cost of property, plant and equipment is removed from the asset accounts.
That amount, net of salvage proceeds, is also removed from accumulated amortization. As a result, any gain
or loss is charged to accumulated amortization and is effectively included in the Amortization True-Up arising
from the next Amortization Study. In 2009, approximately $6.8 million (2008 - $6.8 million) of losses were
charged to accumulated amortization. In the absence of rate regulation, these amounts would have been
recognized as losses upon disposition.

Materials and Supplies
Materials and supplies, representing fuel and materials required for maintenance activities, are carried at the
lower of cost or net realizable value. Materials and supplies expensed in 2009 and 2008 were immaterial.
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Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recorded at cost and amortized over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The weighted average amortization rates for intangible assets in 2009 were 10.0% for computer software
(2008 – 10.0%) and 1.6% for land rights (2008 – 1.6%). There was no impact to the Company’s financial
statements as a result of intangible asset impairments for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Future Income Taxes
Effective January 1, 1981, as prescribed by the PUB, future income tax liabilities are recognized and recovered
in customer rates on temporary timing differences associated with the cumulative excess of capital cost
allowance over amortization of property, plant and equipment, excluding GEC.
Effective January 1, 2008, as prescribed by the PUB, future income taxes are recognized and recovered in
customer rates on temporary timing differences between pension expense and pension funding.
Future income tax expense (recovery) associated with the Company’s regulatory reserves and certain
regulatory deferrals is also recognized and included in the determination of customer rates. See Note 4.
Future income tax assets and liabilities associated with other temporary timing differences between the tax
basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount are not recognized or included in customer rates.
Effective January 1, 2009, the impact of the amendment to CICA Handbook Section 3465, Income Taxes is
the recognition of future income tax assets and liabilities and related regulatory liabilities and assets for the
amount of future income taxes expected to be refunded to, or recovered from, customers in future electricity
rates. See Note 3.

Employee Future Benefits
Newfoundland Power maintains defined contribution and defined benefit pension plans for its employees
and also provides other post-employment benefits (“OPEBs”). OPEBs are composed of retirement allowances
for retiring employees as well as health, medical and life insurance for retirees and their dependants.

Defined Contribution and Defined Benefit Pension Plans
Defined contribution pension plan costs are expensed as incurred.
The pension costs and accrued benefit obligations of the defined benefit pension plans are actuarially
determined using the projected benefit method pro-rated on service and management’s best estimate of
expected plan investment performance, salary escalation and retirement ages of employees. Pension plan
assets are valued using the market-related value where investment returns in excess of or below expected
returns are recognized in asset value over a period of three years. The excess of the cumulative net actuarial
gain or loss over 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the market-related value of plan assets
is amortized over the estimated average remaining service period of active employees. The transitional
obligation arising from the Company’s January 1, 2000 adoption of Section 3461 of the CICA Handbook is
being amortized on a straight-line basis over the 18 year expected average remaining service period of plan
members at that time. Unamortized past service costs are amortized over a range of 5 - 15 years. See Notes
4 and 8.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Defined Contribution and Defined Benefit Pension Plans (cont’d)
Effective January 1, 2010, pursuant to the 2010 GRA, the PUB ordered the creation of a pension expense
variance deferral account (“PEVDA”). This account will be charged or credited with the amount by which
annual pension expense, recorded in accordance with Canadian GAAP, differs from amounts approved in
rates by the PUB. Each year, at March 31, the balance in the PEVDA will be transferred to the Company’s Rate
Stabilization Account and disposed of in accordance with the operation of the Rate Stabilization Account.
See Note 4.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEBs”)
OPEBs costs are expensed when benefits are paid. In the absence of rate regulation, OPEBs costs would be
expensed on an accrual basis as actuarially determined. The portion of the actuarially determined costs that
is not recognized as an expense is deferred as a regulatory asset, as these costs are expected to be recovered
in future customer rates in a manner determined by the PUB. See Note 4.
OPEBs costs and the accrued OPEBs obligation are actuarially determined using the projected benefits method
prorated on service and best estimate assumptions. The excess of any cumulative net actuarial gain or loss
over 10% of the benefit obligation, along with unamortized past service costs is amortized over the estimated
average remaining service period of active employees. The transitional obligation arising from the Company’s
January 1, 2000 adoption of Section 3461 of the CICA Handbook is being amortized on a straight-line basis
over the 18 year expected average remaining service period of plan members at that time. See Note 8.
In the absence of rate regulation, OPEBs costs recognized in 2009 operating expenses would have been
$5.6 million higher (2008 - $6.5 million higher).

Financial Instruments
The Company has designated its financial instruments as follows:
(a)

Cash is classified as “Held for Trading”. After its initial fair value measurement, any change in fair value
is recognized in earnings.

(b)

Certain accounts receivable and loans under customer finance plans (Note 10) are classified as “Loans
and Receivables”.

(c)

Short-term borrowings, bank indebtedness, accounts payable and accrued charges, security deposits
(Note 13) and long-term debt are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities”.

Initial measurement of Loans and Receivables and Other Financial Liabilities are at fair value and incorporates
transaction costs, including debt issue costs. Subsequent measurement is at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. For the Company, the measurement amount approximates cost.
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Asset Retirement Obligations
Under Canadian GAAP, the Company is required to record the fair value of future expenditures necessary to
settle legal obligations associated with asset retirements even though the timing or method of settlement
is conditional on future events. Newfoundland Power has determined that there are asset retirement
obligations (“AROs”) associated with its hydroelectric generation assets and some parts of its transmission
and distribution system.
For hydroelectric generation assets, the legal obligation is the environmental remediation of the land and
waterways to protect fish habitat. However, this obligation is conditional on the decision to decommission
generation assets. The Company currently has no plans to decommission any of its hydroelectric generation
assets as they are effectively operated in perpetuity. Therefore, the nature and fair value of any ARO is not
currently determinable.
The legal obligations for the transmission and distribution system pertain to the proper disposal of used oil
and obligations related to other Company facilities consist of the removal of fuel storage tanks and asbestos.
These obligations were determined to be immaterial and therefore no AROs have been recognized.
The Company will recognize AROs and offsetting property, plant and equipment if the nature and timing can
reasonably be determined and the amount is material.

Use of Accounting Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP requires management to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting periods. Estimates and judgments are based on historical experience, current
conditions and various other assumptions believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Additionally,
certain estimates are necessary since the regulatory environment in which the Company operates often
require amounts to be recorded at estimated values until these amounts are finalized pursuant to regulatory
decisions or other regulatory proceedings. Due to changes in facts and circumstances and the inherent
uncertainty involved in making estimates, actual results may differ significantly from current estimates.
Estimates are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, are reported in earnings in the
period in which they either, as appropriate, become known or included in customer rates.

3.

Change in Accounting Policies
2009 Changes
Rate Regulated Operations: Effective January 1, 2009, the Accounting Standards Board (“AcSB”) amended: (i)
CICA Handbook Section 1100, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“Section 1100”), removing the temporary
exemption providing relief to entities subject to rate regulation from the requirement to apply the Section to
the recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities arising from rate regulation; and (ii) CICA Handbook
Section 3465, Income Taxes (“Section 3465”) to require the recognition of future income tax liabilities and
assets as well as offsetting regulatory assets and liabilities by entities subject to rate regulation.
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3.

Change in Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2009 Changes (cont’d)
(i)

With the removal of the temporary exemption in Section 1100, the Company must now apply this
Section to the recognition of assets and liabilities arising from rate regulation. Certain assets and
liabilities arising from rate regulation continue to have specific guidance under a primary source of
Canadian GAAP that applies only to the particular circumstances described therein, including those
arising under CICA Handbook Section 3061, Property, Plant and Equipment, Section 3465, Income Taxes,
and Section 3475, Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and Discontinued Operations. The assets and liabilities arising
from rate regulation, as described in Note 4 do not have specific guidance under a primary source of
Canadian GAAP. Therefore, Section 1100 directs the Company to adopt accounting policies that are
developed through the exercise of professional judgment and the application of concepts described
in CICA Handbook Section 1000, Financial Statement Concepts. In developing these accounting policies,
the Company may consult other sources including pronouncements issued by bodies authorized to
issue accounting standards in other jurisdictions. In accordance with Section 1100, the Company has
determined that its regulatory assets and liabilities qualify for recognition under Canadian GAAP and
this recognition is consistent with U.S. Financial Accounting Standard Board’s Accounting Standard
Codification 980, Regulated Operations. There was no effect on the Company’s financial statements as at
January 1, 2009 due to the removal of the temporary exemption in Section 1100.

(ii)

The impact of the amendment to Section 3465 is the recognition of future income tax assets and
liabilities and related regulatory liabilities and assets for the amount of future income taxes expected to
be refunded to, or recovered from, customers in future electricity rates. In accordance with the revised
standard, as at January 1, 2009, the Company’s future income tax liability increased by approximately
$118 million with a corresponding net change to regulatory assets and liabilities of approximately
$118 million. Included in the amounts are the future income tax effects of the subsequent settlement of
the related regulatory assets and liabilities through future customer rates. This change does not affect
the Company’s earnings or cash flows.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets: Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the new CICA Handbook
Section 3064, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, which effectively converges Canadian GAAP for goodwill and
intangible assets with International Financial Reporting Standards. Adoption of this standard resulted in
the reclassification of certain assets previously included in property, plant and equipment to intangible
assets. The items that were reclassified consist of certain computer software and land rights. As at
December 31, 2008, $13.8 million and $2.3 million were reclassified to intangible assets on the balance
sheet related to computer software and land rights, respectively.

Future Changes
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”): In February 2008, the AcSB confirmed that the use
of IFRS will be required in 2011 for publicly accountable enterprises in Canada. In October 2009, the AcSB
issued a third and final Omnibus Exposure Draft confirming that publicly accountable enterprises in Canada
will be required to apply IFRS, in full and without modification, beginning January 1, 2011. The transition
date of January 1, 2011 will require the restatement, for comparative purposes, of amounts reported by the
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Company for the year ended December 31, 2010, and of the opening balance sheet as at January 1, 2010.
The AcSB requires that CICA Handbook Section 1506, Accounting Changes, paragraph 30, which requires an
entity to disclose information relating to a new primary source of Canadian GAAP that has been issued but
is not yet effective and that the entity has not applied, not be applied with respect to this Exposure Draft.
Newfoundland Power is continuing to assess the financial reporting impacts of adopting IFRS.
In July 2009, the IASB issued the Exposure Draft – Rate Regulated Activities, with a final standard expected
to be issued in the second quarter of 2010. Based on the Exposure Draft as it currently exists, regulatory
assets and liabilities arising from activities subject to cost of service regulation can be recognized under IFRS
when certain conditions are met. The ability to record regulatory assets and liabilities, as proposed, should
reduce the earnings’ volatility for the Company that may have otherwise resulted under IFRS in the absence
of an accounting standard for rate regulated activities. However, uncertainty as to the final outcome of this
Exposure Draft, and the final standard on accounting for rate regulated activities under IFRS, has resulted
in the Company being unable to reasonably estimate and conclude on the impact on the Company’s future
financial position and results of operations with respect to differences, if any, in accounting for rate regulated
activities under IFRS versus Canadian GAAP.
Newfoundland Power does anticipate a significant increase in disclosure resulting from the adoption of IFRS,
and is identifying and assessing the additional disclosure requirements, as well as implementing systems
changes that will be necessary to compile the required disclosures.

4.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
Regulatory assets and liabilities arise as a result of the rate setting process. Regulatory assets represent
future revenues associated with certain costs incurred in the current or prior periods that will be, or are
expected to be, recovered from customers in future periods through the rate setting process. Regulatory
liabilities represent future reductions or limitations of increases in revenues associated with amounts that
will be, or are expected to be, refunded to customers through the rate setting process. The accounting
methods underlying regulatory assets and liabilities, and their eventual settlement through the rate setting
process, are prescribed by the PUB and impact the Company’s cash flows.
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4.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities (cont’d)
The Company’s regulatory assets and liabilities which will be, or are expected to be, reflected in customer
rates in future periods, follow.

2009
Current
Regulatory Assets
Rate stabilization account (i)
OPEBs (Note 8)
Weather normalization account (ii)1
Amortization true-up deferral (iii)
Pension deferral (iv)
Replacement energy deferral (v)1
Deferred GRA costs (vi)

$

2008

Non-current

2,102
3,862
1,128
600
451

$

1,836
46,713
3,929
4,793
500

Current
$

Non-current

2,486
1,366
3,862
1,128
383
201

$

4
41,074
4,544
3,862
5,920
383
201

Conservation and demand management
deferral (vii)
Future income taxes (Note 3)
$
Regulatory Liabilities
Rate stabilization account (i)
Municipal tax liability (viii)
Unbilled revenue (ix)

$

339

1,018

-

2,541
11,023

138,994
$ 197,783

$

9,426

$

$

418
1,363
4,618

-

1,363
4,618

$
$

55,988
1,364
4,618

Purchased power unit cost variance
reserve (x)1

688

-

447

448

-

48,660

-

47,961

2,287
9,374

20,547
69,207

6,428

426
54,817

Future removal and site restoration
provision (xi)
Demand management incentive account (xii)
Future income taxes (Note 3)
$

$

$

$

1 Balances in 2009 include future income taxes. Balances in 2008 were recorded net of future income taxes.

(i)

Rate Stabilization Account (“RSA”)
On July 1 of each year, customer rates are recalculated in order to recover from or refund to customers,
over the subsequent twelve months, the balance in the RSA as of March 31 of the current year. The
amount and timing of the recovery or refund is subject to PUB approval.
The RSA passes through to the Company’s customers amounts primarily related to changes in the cost
and quantity of fuel used by Hydro to produce the electricity sold to the Company. In the absence of
rate regulation these transactions would be accounted for in a similar manner however the amount and
timing of the recovery or refund would not be subject to PUB approval.
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The RSA passes through, to the Company’s customers, variations in purchased power expense caused
by differences between the actual unit cost of energy and that reflected in customer rates (“energy
supply cost variance”). The marginal cost of purchased power for the Company currently exceeds the
average cost that is embedded in customer rates. To the extent actual electricity sales in any period
exceed forecast electricity sales used to set customer rates, marginal purchased power expense will
exceed related revenue. In the absence of rate regulation, purchased power expense would have been
$2.9 million higher (2008 - $0.4 million lower). Pursuant to the 2010 GRA, the PUB ordered continued
use of the energy supply cost variance until a further order of the Board.
The RSA is also adjusted from time-to-time by other amounts as approved by the Board. In 2008,
the Company included an amount to the demand management incentive account as described in (xii)
below.
Effective January 1, 2010, the PUB approved the PEVDA as described in Note 2 to capture the difference
between the annual pension expense approved for rate setting purposes and actual pension expense
calculated in accordance with Canadian GAAP. The balance in this account will be transferred to the
RSA on March 31 in the year in which the difference arises.
(ii)

Weather Normalization Account
The weather normalization account reduces earnings volatility by adjusting purchased power expense
and electricity sales revenue to eliminate variances in purchases and sales caused by the difference
between normal weather conditions, based on long-term averages, and actual weather conditions. In
the absence of rate regulation these fluctuations would have been recognized in earnings in the period
in which they occurred.
The balance in the weather normalization account, because it is based on long-term averages for
weather conditions, should tend to zero over time. However, the Company identified non-reversing
balances in the account arising from changes in purchased power rates and income tax rates. In 2008,
the PUB ordered that a non-reversing balance of approximately $6.8 million be amortized equally over
2008 - 2012 as an increase in purchased power expense of approximately $2.1 million and a decrease
in future income tax expense of approximately $0.7 million in each year.
The recovery period for the remaining balance in the Weather Normalization Account is not determinable
as it depends on future weather conditions. In the absence of rate regulation, revenue in 2009 would
have been $5.8 million lower (2008 - $7.6 million lower), purchased power expense in 2009 would have
been $8.8 million lower (2008 - $14.6 million lower) and future income tax expense in 2009 would have
been $1.0 million higher (2008 - $2.4 million higher).
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4.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities (cont’d)
(iii)

Amortization True-Up Deferral
The PUB ordered the deferred recovery of approximately $5.8 million in each of 2006 and 2007,
$11.6 million in aggregate, related to a variance in accumulated amortization identified in the 2002
Amortization Study. These deferrals were recorded as an increase in regulatory assets and a decrease
in expenses of $5.8 million in each year. Amortization of $3.9 million was recorded in 2009 and 2008
in accordance with the PUB order that the resultant regulatory asset of approximately $11.6 million be
amortized evenly over 2008 through 2010. In the absence of rate regulation, $11.6 million would have
been expensed in the original years incurred.

(iv)

Pension Deferral
The PUB ordered that approximately $11.3 million of incremental pension costs arising from the
Company’s 2005 early retirement program be deferred and amortized to pension expense equally over
a ten year period beginning April 1, 2005. In the absence of rate regulation, these costs would have
been expensed in 2005.

(v)

Replacement Energy Deferral
In 2008, the PUB ordered that a $1.1 million regulatory asset, related to the deferred recovery of the
cost of replacement energy purchased during the refurbishment of the Company’s Rattling Brook
Hydroelectric Generating Plant, be amortized equally over 2008 – 2010. This increased purchased power
expense by approximately $0.6 million and decreased future income tax expense by approximately
$0.2 million in each year. In the absence of rate regulation, these costs would have been expensed in
2007.

(vi)

Deferred GRA Costs
In 2007, the PUB ordered that external costs related to the Company’s 2008 GRA be deferred and
amortized evenly over 2008 – 2010 as an increase to operating expense. The actual external costs
totalled $0.6 million. In the absence of rate regulation, these costs would have been expensed as
incurred.
In 2009, the PUB ordered that an estimated $0.8 million of external costs related to the Company’s
2010 GRA be deferred and amortized equally over 2010-2012. In the absence of rate regulation, these
costs would have been expensed in 2009.

(vii) Conservation and Demand Management Deferral
In 2009, the PUB ordered the deferral of $1.4 million of costs, associated with the implementation
of conservation and demand management programs. In 2009, the PUB ordered that these costs be
amortized evenly over 2010 – 2013 as an increase to operating expense. In the absence of rate regulation,
these costs would have been expensed in 2009.
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(viii) Municipal Tax Liability
The municipal tax liability results from a timing difference related to the recovery and payment of
municipal taxes. This arose as a result of the PUB approved municipal tax rate adjustment. The PUB
ordered that this liability be amortized as other revenue equally over 2008 - 2010. In the absence of rate
regulation, these costs would have been recorded as revenue as incurred.
(ix)

Unbilled Revenue
Prior to January 1, 2006, revenue from electricity sales was recognized as bills were rendered to
customers. Subsequent to this date, revenue is recognized on an accrual basis. The difference
between revenue recognized on a billed basis and revenue recognized on an accrual basis as at
December 31, 2005 was recorded on the balance sheet as a regulatory liability. As ordered by the
PUB, the Company amortized as an increase to revenue approximately $4.6 million of this regulatory
liability in 2009 (2008 - $7.2 million). The remaining unamortized balance at December 31, 2009 will
be amortized in 2010. In the absence of rate regulation, all the unbilled revenue would have been
recognized as revenue during 2005.

(x)

Purchased Power Unit Cost Variance Reserve
In 2008, the PUB ordered the discontinuance of the purchased power unit cost variance reserve and
that the December 31, 2006 balance in the reserve of approximately $1.3 million be amortized over
2008 – 2010 as a decrease to purchased power. In 2008, the PUB ordered that the balance in the
account related to 2008 be transferred to the RSA. In the absence of rate regulation, the balance in the
account would have been expensed as incurred.

(xi)

Future Removal and Site Restoration Provision
This regulatory liability represents amounts collected in customer electricity rates over the life of certain
property, plant and equipment which are attributable to removal and site restoration costs that are
expected to be incurred in the future. Actual removal and site restoration costs, net of salvage proceeds,
are recorded against the regulatory liability when incurred. The regulatory liability represents the amount
of expected future removal and site restoration costs associated with property, plant and equipment in
service as at December 31, calculated using current amortization rates as approved by the PUB. In the
absence of rate regulation, removal and site restoration costs, net of salvage proceeds, would have been
recognized as an operating expense when incurred.

(xii) Demand Management Incentive Account (“DMI”)
Through the DMI, variations in the unit cost of purchased power related to demand are limited, at
the discretion of the PUB, to 1% of demand costs reflected in customer rates. In 2008, $0.4 million
was transferred to this account. The PUB ordered the disposition of this balance, adjusted for income
taxes, through the RSA effective July 1, 2009. The disposition of any future balances in this account,
which would be determined by a further order of the PUB, will consider the merits of the Company’s
conservation and demand management activities. In the absence of rate regulation, purchased power
expense would have been $0.6 million lower in 2008 and would have had no impact in 2009.

61 Notes to Financial Statements

5.

Finance Charges

Interest - first mortgage sinking fund bonds
Interest - committed credit facility
Interest - related party loan
Interest - other
Total interest expense
Amortization - debt issue costs
Amortization - capital stock issue costs
AFUDC (Note 2)

6.

2009

2008

$ 34,547
396
15
34,958
235
37
(675)
$ 34,555

$ 32,334
1,187
258
49
33,828
235
62
(618)
$ 33,507

Income Taxes
Income taxes vary from the amount that would be determined by applying statutory income tax rates to
pre-tax earnings. A reconciliation of the combined federal and provincial statutory income tax rate to the
Company’s effective income tax rate follows.

Accounting income per financial statements
Statutory tax rate
Expected tax expense (statutory rate)
Item capitalized vs. expensed
Capital cost allowance vs. amortization
Pension funding vs. pension expense
Other timing difference
Unbilled revenue
Regulatory deferrals
Income tax expense
Effective tax rate

2009

2008

$ 49,293
33.0%
16,267
(1,003)
1,113
232
(276)
(1,524)
1,283
$ 16,092
32.6%

$ 52,041
33.5%
17,434
(926)
1,088
(162)
265
102
1,345
$ 19,146
36.8%

The composition of the Company’s income tax provision follows.

Current income tax expense
Future income tax expense (recovery)
Regulatory adjustment (Note 3)

2009

2008

$ 15,590
3,382
(2,880)
$ 16,092

$ 20,346
(1,200)
$ 19,146

Pursuant to a settlement agreement with the Canada Revenue Agency, current income taxes in 2008 included
approximately $2.5 million related to the Company’s January 1, 2006 adoption of the accrual method of
revenue recognition for income tax purposes. Current income taxes for 2009 onwards are not affected by
this agreement.
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2009
Future income tax liability
Property, plant and equipment/intangibles
Regulatory assets and liabilities
Employee future benefits
Debt financing costs
Net future income tax liability

$ 78,011
24,768
19,575
1,140
$ 123,494

Current future income tax liability
Long-term future income tax liability
Net future income tax liability

1,068
122,426
$ 123,494

2008
$

$

575
609
1,184

$

1,184
1,184

As at December 31, 2009, the Company had no capital losses (2008 - $0.2 million) carried forward which
have not been recognized in the financial statements.

7.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Accumulated
Amortization

Cost
2009
Distribution

$

718,921

$

Net Book Value

2008

2009

2008

2009

2008

690,675

$ 261,404

$ 248,543

$ 457,517

$ 442,132

Transmission and substations

234,154

221,985

88,199

84,812

145,955

137,173

Generation

168,087

159,498

49,478

45,639

118,609

113,859

33,426

33,056

16,710

16,163

16,716

16,893

Transportation and
communications
Land, buildings and equipment

68,553

69,718

27,362

27,464

41,191

42,254

Construction in progress

2,967

2,126

-

-

2,967

2,126

Construction materials

4,263

4,375

-

-

4,263

4,375

$1,230,371

$1,181,433

$ 443,153

$ 422,621

$ 787,218

$ 758,812

Distribution assets are used to distribute low voltage electricity to customers and include poles, towers and
fixtures, low voltage wires, transformers, overhead and underground conductors, street lighting, metering
equipment and other related equipment.
Transmission and substations assets are used to transmit high voltage electricity to distribution assets and
include poles, high voltage wires, switching equipment, transformers and other related equipment.
Generation assets are used to generate electricity and include hydroelectric and thermal generating stations,
gas and combustion turbines, dams, reservoirs and other related equipment.
Transportation and communications assets include vehicles as well as telephone, radio and other
communications equipment.
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7.

Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)
Land, buildings and equipment are used generally in the provision of electricity service but not specifically
in the distribution, transmission or generation of electricity or specifically related to transportation and
communication activities.

8.

Employee Future Benefits
The Company’s defined contribution plans are its individual and group registered retirement savings plans,
and an unfunded supplementary employee retirement plan (“SERP”). Benefits are based upon employee
earnings. The accrued benefit liability for the SERP is included in other liabilities on the Company’s balance
sheets (Note 13). During 2009, the Company expensed approximately $1.2 million (2008 - $1.0 million)
related to these plans.
The Company’s defined benefit plans are its funded defined benefit pension plan, an unfunded pension
uniformity plan (“PUP”) and OPEBs. Both pension plans are closed to new entrants and provide benefits
based on a percentage of the highest 36 consecutive months average base earnings and the employee’s
years of service.
The accrued benefit obligation for all of the Company’s defined benefit plans, and the market-related value
of plan assets for the Company’s funded primary defined benefit pension plan, are measured for accounting
purposes as at December 31 of each year.
The most recent actuarial valuation of the Company’s defined benefit pension plans for funding purposes
was as of December 31, 2008 and the next valuation is expected to be as of December 31, 2011. The most
recent actuarial valuation of the Company’s OPEBs was December 31, 2008.
The accrued benefit asset for the Company’s funded primary defined benefit pension plan is included in
accrued pension on the Company’s balance sheets. The accrued benefits liability for the PUP is included in
other liabilities (Note 13).
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Details of the Company’s defined benefit plans follow.

2009

2008

Unfunded
Funded

PUP

Unfunded

OPEB

Funded

PUP

OPEB

Change in accrued benefit
obligation
Balance, beginning of year

2,169

$ 59,636

$235,477

2,558

$ 70,411

3,420

-

1,008

4,844

-

1,384

Interest cost

13,923

154

4,485

12,740

135

3,901

Benefits paid

(12,131)

(215)

(1,304)

(12,926)

(215)

(1,175)

Current service costs

Plan amendments
Actuarial (gains) losses
Balance, end of year

$190,391

$

-

-

26,333
$221,936

$

$212,599

$

1,004

$

-

-

210

4,838

2,318

$69,667

$190,391

(49,744)
$

-

$259,731

$

-

19,169

-

(309)
2,169

(14,885)
$ 59,636

Change in fair value of plan
assets
Balance, beginning of year
Return on assets
Benefits paid

17,386

-

$

-

(12,131)

(215)

(1,304)

-

$

-

(12,926)

(215)

(1,175)

Actuarial (losses) gains

18,725

-

-

Employee contributions

1,286

-

-

1,193

-

-

Employer contributions

4,866

215

1,304

5,425

215

1,175

-

$212,599

$

$ 22,209

$

Balance, end of year

$242,731

$

$ 20,795

$

-

$

(59,993)

-

-

-

-

$

-

Funded status
Surplus (deficit), end of year
Unamortized net actuarial loss

(2,318)

$ (69,667)

(2,169)

$ (59,636)

64,376

474

11,093

56,768

269

6,277

10,297

373

10,857

11,584

419

12,285

2,334

1

1,004

2,587

1

-

Unamortized transitional
obligation
Unamortized past service costs
Accrued benefit asset (liability),
end of year

$ 97,802

$

(1,470)

$ (46,713)

$ 93,148

$

(1,480)

$ (41,074)

Effect of 1% increase in health
care cost trends on:
Accrued benefit obligation

-

-

$

9,439

-

-

$

8,319

Service costs and interest cost

-

-

$

830

-

-

$

1,013

Accrued benefit obligation

-

-

$

(7,606)

-

-

$

(6,707)

Service costs and interest cost

-

-

$

(655)

-

-

$

(808)

Effect of 1% decrease in health
care cost trends on:
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8.

Employee Future Benefits (cont’d)
2009

2008

Unfunded
Funded

PUP

Unfunded

OPEB

Funded

PUP

OPEB

Significant assumptions
Discount rate during year

7.50%

7.50%

7.50%

5.50%

5.50%

5.50%

Discount rate as at December 31

6.50%

6.50%

6.70%

7.50%

7.50%

7.50%

Expected long-term rate of return
on plan assets

7.00%

-

-

7.50%

-

-

Rate of compensation increases

4.00%

4.00%

4.00%

4.00%

4.00%

4.00%

-

-

4.50%

-

-

4.50%

11 years

11 years

14 years

12 years

12 years

15 years

Health care cost trend increases
as at December 31
Expected average remaining
service of active employees

Net benefit expense
Current service costs

$

Interest cost

2,134

$

13,923

Expected return on plan assets

-

$

1,008

154

4,485

-

-

1,287

47

1,428

-

5

22

253

-

1,128

-

(17,386)

$

3,651

$

12,740

-

$

1,384

135

3,901

-

-

1,287

47

1,428

1,911

28

1,009

335

-

1,128

-

(19,169)

Amortization of transition
obligation
Amortization of net actuarial loss
Amortization of past service
costs
Regulatory adjustment (Note 4)
Net benefit expense

$

1,339

$

206

(5,639)
$

1,304

$

1,883

$

210

(6,547)
$

1,175

Asset allocation

9.

Fixed income

40%

-

-

48%

-

-

Equities

40%

-

-

32%

-

-

Foreign equities

20%

-

-

20%

-

-

Intangible Assets
Accumulated
Amortization

Cost
Computer software
Land rights
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Net Book Value

2009

2008

2009

2008

2009

2008

30,533
6,754
$ 37,287

$ 30,988
6,645
$ 37,633

$ 16,892
4,282
$ 21,174

$ 17,193
4,295
$ 21,488

$ 13,641
2,472
$ 16,113

$ 13,795
2,350
$ 16,145

$

10. Other Assets
2009
Customer finance plans
Capital stock issue costs
Credit facility costs

$

$

1,679
38
1,717

2008
$

$

1,776
75
50
1,901

Customer finance plans represent the non-current portion of loans to customers for certain new service
requests and energy efficiency upgrades. The current portion of these loans is classified as accounts receivable.
In the case of new service requests, and as prescribed by the PUB, interest is charged at a fixed rate of prime
plus 3% for repayment periods up to 60 months and prime plus 4% for repayment periods of 61 months to
120 months. In the case of energy efficiency upgrades, interest is charged at a fixed rate of prime plus 4% for
a maximum repayment period of 60 months. All loan instalments are made through the customers’ monthly
electricity bill payments. The balance of any loan may be repaid at any time without penalty.

11. Credit Facilities
Newfoundland Power has unsecured bank credit facilities of $120 million comprised of a syndicated
$100 million committed revolving term credit facility which matures on August 29, 2011 and a $20 million
demand facility.
Borrowings under the committed facility have been classified as long-term as they are expected to remain
outstanding for a period extending beyond one year from the balance sheet date and management intends
to refinance these amounts in the future with the issuance of other long-term debt. These borrowings are in
the form of bankers acceptances bearing interest based on the daily Canadian Deposit Offering Rate for the
date of borrowing plus a stamping fee. Standby fees on the unutilized portion of the committed facility are
payable quarterly in arrears at a fixed rate of 0.10%. Interest on the demand facility is calculated at the daily
prime rate and is payable monthly in arrears.
The utilized and unutilized credit facilities as at December 31 follow.

Total credit facilities
Borrowings under committed facility (Note 12)
Credit facilities available

2009

2008

$ 120,000
(13,500)
$ 106,500

$ 120,000
(32,000)
$ 88,000

67 Notes to Financial Statements

12. Long-term Debt
2009
First mortgage sinking fund bonds
10.550% $40 million Series AD, due 2014
10.900% $40 million Series AE, due 2016
10.125% $40 million Series AF, due 2022
9.000% $40 million Series AG, due 2020
8.900% $40 million Series AH, due 2026
6.800% $50 million Series AI, due 2028
7.520% $75 million Series AJ, due 2032
5.441% $60 million Series AK, due 2035
5.901% $70 million Series AL, due 2037
6.606% $65 million Series AM, due 2039

$

Long-term classification of credit facilities (Note 11)
Less: current installments of long-term debt
Less: debt issue costs
$

30,553
32,800
33,200
34,000
34,835
44,500
69,750
57,000
67,900
64,350
13,500
482,388
5,200
477,188
3,138
474,050

2008
$

$

30,953
33,200
33,600
34,400
35,235
45,000
70,500
57,600
68,600
32,000
441,088
4,550
436,538
2,934
433,604

In 2009, the Company issued $65 million in Series AM first mortgage sinking fund bonds. The bonds were
issued with a 30-year term at an interest rate of 6.606%.
First mortgage sinking fund bonds are secured by a first fixed and specific charge on property, plant and
equipment owned or to be acquired by the Company and by a floating charge on all other assets. They
require an annual sinking fund payment of 1% of the original principal balance.
Future payments required to meet sinking fund instalments, maturities of long-term debt and long-term
credit facilities follow.
2010

$

5,200,000

2011

$

18,700,000

2012

$

5,200,000

2013

$

5,200,000

2014

$

33,753,000

2015 and after

$ 414,335,000

13. Other Liabilities
2009
Defined benefit pension liability - unfunded (Note 8)
Security deposits
Defined contribution pension liability (Note 8)

$

$
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1,470
581
1,909
3,960

2008
$

1,480
785
1,662
3,927

Security deposits are advance cash collections from certain customers to guarantee the payment of electricity
bills. The security deposit liability includes interest credited to customer deposits. The current portion of
security deposits is reported in accounts payable and accrued charges.

14. Capital Stock
Authorized
(a)

an unlimited number of Class A and Class B Common Shares without nominal or par value. The shares
of each class are inter-convertible on a share-for-share basis and rank equally in all respects including
dividends. The Board of Directors may provide for the payment, in whole or in part, of any dividends to
Class B shareholders by way of a stock dividend;

(b)

an unlimited number of First Preference Shares and Second Preference Shares without nominal or par
value, except that each Series A, B, D and G First Preference Share has a par value of $10. The issued
First Preference Shares are entitled to cumulative preferential dividends and are redeemable at the
option of the Company at a premium not in excess of the annual dividend rate. Series D and G First
Preference Shares are subject to the operation of purchase funds and the Company has the right to
purchase limited amounts of these shares at or below par.

Issued
2009

2008

Number of
Class A common shares
First preference shares
5.50% Series A
5.25% Series B
7.25% Series D
7.60% Series G

Number of

Shares

Amount

Shares

Amount

10,320,270

$ 70,321

10,320,270

$ 70,321

179,225
337,983
210,890
183,000
911,098

1,792
3,380
2,109
1,830
9,111

179,225
337,983
212,065
205,950
935,223

1,792
3,380
2,121
2,059
9,352

$

$

At December 31, 2009, Fortis held 230,194 or approximately 25.3% of the Company’s issued and outstanding
First Preference Shares.

15. Related Party Transactions
The Company provides services to, and receives services from, its parent Company, Fortis, and other affiliates.
The Company also incurs charges from Fortis for the recovery of general corporate expenses incurred by
Fortis. Related party revenue primarily relates to electricity sales. These transactions are in the normal course
of business and are recorded at their exchange amounts.
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15. Related Party Transactions (cont’d)
Related party transactions included in revenue, operating expenses and finance charges in 2009 and 2008,
and in accounts receivable at December 31 of these years, follow.

2009

2008
Other

Fortis
Revenue
Operating expenses
Finance charges
Accounts receivable

$

$

181
1,561
52

Affiliates
$

$

4,313
68
26

Other
Fortis
$

$

Affiliates

173
1,352
258
31

$

$

4,052
93
132

16. Capital Management
Newfoundland Power’s primary objectives when managing capital are (i) to ensure continued access to
capital at reasonable cost, and (ii) to provide an adequate return to its common shareholder commensurate
with the level of risk associated with the shareholder’s investment in the Company.
The Company requires ongoing access to capital because its business is capital intensive. Capital investment
is required to ensure continued and enhanced performance, reliability and safety of its electricity systems
and to meet customer growth.
The Company operates under cost of service regulation. The cost of capital is ultimately borne by its customers.
Access to capital at reasonable cost is a core aspect of the Company’s business strategy, which is to operate
a sound electricity system and to focus on the safe and reliable delivery of electricity service to its customers
in the most cost-efficient manner possible.
The capital managed by the Company is composed of debt (first mortgage sinking fund bonds, bank credit
facilities and cash/bank indebtedness), common equity (common shares and retained earnings) and preference
equity.
The Company has historically generated sufficient cash flows from operating activities to service interest and
sinking fund payments on debt, to pay dividends and to finance a major portion of its capital expenditure
programs. Additional financing to fully fund capital expenditure programs is obtained through the Company’s
credit facilities and these borrowings are periodically refinanced along with any maturing bonds through the
issuance of additional bonds. These basic cash flow and capital management dynamics are consistent with
previous periods and are currently not expected to change materially over the foreseeable future.
Newfoundland Power endeavours to maintain a capital structure comprised of approximately 55% debt
and 45% common equity. This capital structure is reflected in customer rates. It is also consistent with
the Company’s current investment grade credit ratings, thereby ensuring continued access to capital at
reasonable cost. The Company maintains this capital structure primarily by managing its common share
dividends.
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A summary of the Company’s capital structure as at December 31 follows.

2009
Debt1
Common equity
Preference equity

2008

$

%

$

%

473,942
381,185
9,111
864,238

54.8
44.1
1.1
100.0

437,535
373,738
9,352
820,625

53.3
45.5
1.2
100.0

1 Includes bank indebtedness or net of cash, if applicable.

The issuance of debt with a maturity that exceeds one year requires the prior approval of the Company’s
regulator. The issuance of first mortgage sinking fund bonds is subject to an earnings covenant whereby
the ratio of (i) annual earnings, before bond interest and tax, to (ii) annual bond interest incurred plus
annual bond interest to be incurred on the contemplated bond issue, must be two times or higher. Under its
committed credit facility, the Company must also ensure that its Debt to Capitalization ratio does not exceed
0.65:1.00 at any time. During the year, and as at December 31, 2009, the Company was in compliance with
all of its debt covenants.

17. Financial Instruments
The Company has designed its financial instruments as at December 31 as follows:

2009

Held for trading
Cash
Loans and receivables
Accounts receivable
Customer finance plans1
Other financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued charges
Security deposits2
Long-term debt, including current portion

2008

Carrying

Estimated

Carrying

Estimated

Value

Fair Value

Value

Fair Value

5,308

5,308

619

619

64,553
1,679

64,553
1,679

63,508
1,776

63,508
1,776

65,727
581
479,250

65,727
581
577,553

65,548
785
438,154

65,548
785
505,121

1 Included in other assets on the balance sheet.
2 Included in other liabilities on the balance sheet.

Fair Values: The fair value of long-term debt, including current portion, is calculated by discounting the future
cash flows of each debt instrument at the estimated yield-to-maturity equivalent to benchmark government
bonds, with similar terms to maturity, plus a market credit risk premium equal to that of issuers of similar
credit quality. Since the Company does not intend to settle its debt instruments before maturity, the fair
value estimate does not represent an actual liability and, therefore, does not include exchange or settlement
costs.
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17. Financial Instruments (cont’d)
The fair value of the Company’s remaining financial instruments approximates their carrying value, reflecting
their nature, short-term maturity or normal trade credit terms.
The fair value of the Company’s financial instruments reflects a point-in-time estimate based on current and
relevant market information about the instruments as at the balance sheet date. The estimates cannot be
determined with precision as they involve uncertainties and matters of judgment, and therefore, may not be
relevant in predicting the Company’s future earnings or cash flows.
Credit Risk: There is risk that Newfoundland Power may not be able to collect all of its accounts receivable
and amounts owing under its customer finance plans. These financial instruments, which arise in the normal
course of business, do not represent a significant concentration of credit risk as amounts are owed by a large
number of customers on normal credit terms. The requirement for security deposits for certain customers,
which are advance cash collections from customers to guarantee payment of electricity billings, further
reduces the exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the net carrying value of these
financial instruments.
Newfoundland Power manages credit risk primarily by executing its credit and collection policy, including the
requirement for security deposits, through the resources of its Customer Relations Department.
The aging of accounts receivable and amounts owing under customer finance plans, past due but not
impaired, as at December 31 follow.

Not past
Past due
Past due
Past due
Past due

due
1-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
over 90 days

2009

2008

$ 33,042
28,564
3,755
846
25
$ 66,232

$ 34,275
26,660
3,391
830
128
$ 65,284

Liquidity Risk: The Company’s financial position could be adversely affected if it failed to arrange sufficient
and cost-effective financing to fund, among other things, capital expenditures and repayment of maturing
debt.
The ability to arrange such financing is subject to numerous factors, including the results of operations and
financial position of the Company, conditions in the capital and bank credit markets, ratings assigned by
ratings agencies and general economic conditions. These factors are mitigated by the legal requirement as
outlined in the Electrical Power Control Act which requires rates be set to enable the Company to achieve and
maintain a sound credit rating in the financial markets of the world.
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Newfoundland Power manages short-term liquidity risk primarily by maintaining bank credit facilities.
The Company has unsecured facilities of $120 million, comprised of a syndicated $100 million committed
revolving term credit facility and a $20 million demand facility.
Newfoundland Power manages long-term liquidity risk primarily by maintaining its investment grade credit
ratings. See Note 16.
As at December 31, 2009, the fair value of the Company’s primary defined benefit pension plan assets was
$242.7 million. The fair value of plan assets at the beginning of 2008 was $259.7 million. The decrease in
the fair value of pension plan assets since the beginning of 2008 was mainly driven by unfavourable market
conditions.
In April 2009, Newfoundland Power received the Actuarial Valuation Report for its defined benefit pension
plan as of December 31, 2008. Based on the report, the solvency ratio of the plan is 92.4% which translated
into a solvency deficit of $6.9 million ($7.7 million inclusive of interest). The solvency deficit is required to be
funded over a 5 year period, commencing in 2009. The Company does not expect any difficulty in its ability
to meet future pension funding requirements as it expects the amounts will be financed from a combination
of cash generated from operations and amounts available for borrowing under existing credit facilities.
The contractual maturities of the Company’s financial liabilities at December 31, 2009 follow.

(millions)
Accounts payable and accrued charges
Security deposits
Credit facilities (unsecured)
Interest mortgage sinking fund bonds
First mortgage sinking fund bonds1
Total

2011-

2013-

2015

Total

2010

2012

2014

onward

65.7
1.7
13.5
579.6
468.9
1,129.4

65.7
1.1
35.8
5.2
107.8

0.6
13.5
70.5
10.4
95.0

67.6
39.0
106.6

405.7
414.3
820.0

1 First mortgage sinking fund bonds are secured by a first fixed and specific charge on property, plant and equipment owned or to be acquired by the Company
and by a floating charge on all other assets.

Market Risk: Exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations is immaterial.
Market driven changes in interest rates and changes in the Company’s credit ratings can cause
fluctuations in interest costs associated with the Company’s bank credit facilities. For the year ended
December 31, 2009, each 25 basis points change in interest rates on the Company’s credit facilities
would have caused a $43,000 change in credit facility interest costs and a $29,000 change in earnings
(2008 - $73,000 and $49,000, respectively).
The Company periodically refinances its credit facilities in the normal course with fixed-rate first mortgage
sinking fund bonds thereby significantly mitigating exposure to interest rate changes.
Changes in interest rates and/or changes in the Company’s credit ratings can affect the interest rate on first
mortgage sinking fund bonds at the time of issue.
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17. Financial Instruments (cont’d)
The Company’s defined benefit pension plan is impacted by economic conditions. There is no assurance
that the pension plan assets will earn the expected long-term rate of return in the future. Market driven
changes impacting the performance of the pension plan assets may result in material variations from the
expected long-term return on the assets. This may cause material changes in future pension liabilities and
pension expense. Market driven changes impacting the discount rate may also result in material variations
in future pension liabilities and pension expense. Effective January 1, 2009, pursuant to the 2010 GRA, the
operation of the PEVDA is expected to significantly mitigate the impact on the Company’s pension expense
as described in Note 2.

18. Commitments
The Company is obligated to provide service to customers, resulting in ongoing capital expenditure
commitments. Capital expenditures are subject to PUB approval. The Company’s 2010 capital plan provides
for capital expenditures of approximately $64.7 million and was approved by the PUB in November 2009.

19. Comparative Figures
The comparative financial statements have been reclassified from statements previously presented to conform
to the presentation of the current year financial statements.
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Ten Year Summary
2009

20081

20071

20061

2005

2004

2003

2002

2001

2000

Revenue

527,179

516,889

491,709

422,405

419,963

404,447

384,150

369,627

359,305

348,413

Purchased power

345,656

336,658

326,778

257,157

255,954

244,012

227,964

210,764

202,479

199,266

51,988

50,172

53,202

53,996

53,812

51,755

51,799

50,767

52,908

52,486

Amortization of capital assets

45,687

44,511

34,162

33,129

32,143

30,987

29,372

35,442

34,003

29,625

Finance charges

34,555

33,507

34,939

33,819

31,369

30,393

30,009

26,853

26,700

26,641

Income taxes

16,092

19,146

12,176

13,639

15,368

15,586

14,945

16,381

13,730

13,296

Earnings applicable to common shares

32,628

32,341

29,866

30,078

30,729

31,122

29,460

28,807

28,862

26,473

1,230,371 1,181,433 1,173,642 1,119,820 1,085,106 1,050,913 1,009,448

949,478

914,735

865,406

Income Statement Items

($thousands)

Operating, pension and ERP costs
2

Balance Sheet Items

($thousands)

Property, plant and equipment
3

Intangible assets

Accumulated amortization
Net capital assets
Total assets
Long-term debt

4

37,633

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

444,109

422,848

402,683

387,815

420,836

407,319

381,003

369,659

353,078

803,331

774,957

750,794

717,137

697,291

630,077

602,129

568,475

545,076

512,328

1,188,021 1,001,855

985,930

929,158

889,013

825,310

744,375

704,598

667,289

628,252

479,250

438,154

443,527

414,489

395,298

328,558

332,208

335,858

263,758

280,158

9,111

9,352

9,352

9,353

9,410

9,417

9,429

9,709

9,709

9,890

Common equity

381,185

373,738

356,671

335,887

323,972

316,360

299,480

279,515

260,203

250,331

Total capital

869,546

821,244

809,550

759,729

728,680

654,335

641,117

625,082

533,670

540,379

Purchased

5,188

5,088

5,013

4,876

4,873

4,841

4,725

4,604

4,495

4,432

Generated

426

426

381

417

426

424

425

424

416

423

5,614

5,514

5,394

5,293

5,299

5,265

5,150

5,028

4,911

4,855

Residential

3,203

3,130

3,044

2,981

2,987

2,972

2,909

2,843

2,775

2,707

Commercial and street lighting

2,096

2,078

2,049

2,014

2,017

2,007

1,973

1,922

1,892

1,848

Total

5,299

5,208

5,093

4,995

5,004

4,979

4,882

4,765

4,667

4,555

9.3

9.5

9.2

9.0

9.0

8.3

8.1

7.8

7.5

6.9

207,335

204,204

201,045

198,568

196,412

193,912

191,314

188,925

186,828

185,287

Preference shares

Operating Statistics
Sources of Electricity

(GWh)

(normalized)

Total

Sales

37,287
464,327

(normalized)

Electricity sales per employee

Customers

(year-end)

Residential
Commercial and street lighting

31,972

31,574

31,217

30,932

30,889

30,552

30,339

30,147

30,051

29,923

239,307

235,778

232,262

229,500

227,301

224,464

221,653

219,072

216,879

215,210

Operating cost per customer ($)5

214

208

213

212

218

220

225

223

231

230

Number of regular full-time employees

572

551

555

552

556

599

606

610

626

656

Total

1
2
3
4
5

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation.
Amount for 2007 and 2006 is net of a regulatory deferral of $5.8 million, as approved by the PUB.
Beginning in 2008, intangible assets were reported separately on the Balance Sheet.
Net of deferred financing charges in 2009, 2008 and 2007.
Operating cost per customer is calculated excluding pension and early retirement program costs.
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Jocelyn Perry
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
Peter Alteen
Vice President, Regulation and Planning
Gary Smith
Vice President, Customer Operations and Engineering
Earl Ludlow
President and Chief Executive Officer

Connected to our

Communities
We are proud that community groups throughout the province can count on us for support. We were pleased to
provide financial, in-kind and hands-on assistance to the following organizations and many more in 2009:

Health
The Dr. H. Bliss Murphy Cancer Care Foundation, PRIORITY: The Campaign for Cancer Care, The Burin Peninsula
Health Care Foundation, The Western Memorial Health Care Foundation, The Children’s Wish Foundation, The
Newfoundland & Labrador Down Syndrome Society, Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation, The Arthritis Society
(Newfoundland and Labrador Division), Alzheimer Society of Newfoundland & Labrador, Trinity Conception
Placentia Health Care Foundation, Janeway Children’s Hospital Foundation, Learning Disabilities Association of
Newfoundland & Labrador, Heart and Stroke Foundation of Newfoundland & Labrador, Canadian Blood Services,
Canadian Mental Health Association

Safety
Newfoundland & Labrador Association of Fire Services, Firefighter Electricity Safety Training, Learn Not to Burn
Program, Child Find Newfoundland & Labrador, School Electricity Safety Program, Safety Services Newfoundland
Labrador, Newfoundland & Labrador Crime Stoppers, Newfoundland & Labrador Snowmobile Federation, Triple
Bay Eagles Ground Search and Rescue

Environment
Atlantic Salmon Federation, Tree Canada, Newfoundland & Labrador Home Builders’ Association, Thomas Howe
Demonstration Forest, Trans Canada Trail Foundation, Marystown Community Pride, Rennies River Development
Foundation, Corner Brook Stream Development Corporation

Education & Youth
Junior Achievement of Newfoundland & Labrador, Memorial University of Newfoundland, College of the North
Atlantic, Newfoundland & Labrador Science Centre, Newfoundland & Labrador High School Athletic Federation,
Scouts Canada, Church Lads’ Brigade, Special Olympics

Community
Newfoundland & Labrador Region of the Canadian Red Cross, Community Food Sharing Association, Coats for
Kids, Habitat for Humanity, Community Services Council Newfoundland & Labrador

Arts & Culture
Newfoundland Symphony Orchestra, Kiwanis Music Festival Association, Resource Centre for the Arts
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Board of Directors

Peggy Bartlett
President
Bartlett Enterprises Inc.
Grand Falls-Windsor,
Newfoundland & Labrador

Frank Davis
Corporate Director
St. John’s,
Newfoundland & Labrador

Earl Ludlow
President & Chief Executive Officer
Newfoundland Power Inc.
St. John’s,
Newfoundland & Labrador

Barry Perry
Vice President, Finance &
Chief Financial Officer
Fortis Inc.
St. John’s,
Newfoundland & Labrador
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Ed Drover
Financial Advisor & President
Ringwood Wealth
Management Inc.
St. John’s,
Newfoundland & Labrador

David Norris
Corporate Director
St. John’s,
Newfoundland & Labrador

Bruce Simmons
President & Chief Executive Officer
Hammond Farm Ltd.
Corner Brook,
Newfoundland & Labrador

Georgina Hedges
Owner/Operator
The Doctor’s Inn
Eastport,
Newfoundland & Labrador

Fred O’Brien
President & Chief Executive Officer
Maritime Electric Company, Limited
Charlottetown,
Prince Edward Island

John Walker
President & Chief Executive Officer
FortisBC Inc.
Kelowna,
British Columbia

Jo Mark Zurel
President
Stonebridge Capital Inc.
St. John’s,
Newfoundland & Labrador

Investor Information
Head Office

Website

55 Kenmount Road, P.O. Box 8910

newfoundlandpower.com

St. John’s, NL A1B 3P6
Tel: (709) 737-2802
Fax: (709) 737-5300
Share Transfer Agent and Registrar
Computershare Trust Company of Canada
1500 University Street, Suite 700
Montreal, QC H3A 3S8

Email
contactus@newfoundlandpower.com
Fortis Websites
Fortis Inc.
		 fortisinc.com
FortisAlberta Inc.

Tel: (514) 982-7888

		 fortisalberta.com

Fax: (514) 982-7635

FortisBC Inc.

computershare.com

		 fortisbc.com
Terasen Gas

Annual General Meeting
Wednesday, May 5, 2010 at 8:00 a.m.
Main Boardroom, 3rd Floor
Newfoundland Power Inc.
55 Kenmount Road
St. John’s, NL A1B 3P6

terasengas.com
FortisOntario Inc.
		 fortisontario.com
Maritime Electric Company, Limited
		 maritimeelectric.com
Belize Electricity Limited
		 bel.com.bz

Investor Information
Peter Alteen, Corporate Secretary
55 Kenmount Road, P.O. Box 8910
St. John’s, NL A1B 3P6
Tel: (709) 737-5859
palteen@newfoundlandpower.com

Caribbean Utilities Company, Ltd.
		 cuc-cayman.com
Fortis Properties Corporation
		 fortisproperties.com
Fortis Turks and Caicos
		 provopowercompany.com
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